AWARD/CONTRACT 1. THIS CONTRACT IS A RAUNDER DPAS (15 CFR 70								RATING	PAGE OF	PAGES 300	
2. CONTRACT (Proc. Inst. Ident.) NO. W15QKN1691002P00085 3. EFFECTIVE DATE 08 Ap				4. REQUISITION/PURCHASE REQUEST/PR					ROJECT NO.	000	
5. ISSUED BY CODE W15QKN US ARMY CONTRACTING COMMAND US ACC NEW JERSEY PICAT NNY NJ 07806-5000				6. ADMINISTERED BY (If other than Iwm 5) CODE S1103A DCMA ATLANTA 2300 LAKE PARK DRIVE SUITE 300 SMYRNA GA 30080-4091							
7. NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONT RA ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY NTERNATIONAL ON BEHALF OF THE NCBDC 315 SIGMADR SUMMERVILLE SC 29496-7790	CTOR (No., street, city;	, county, state a	nd zip c	ode)					OTHER (See b	elow)	
						1	ITEM	•			
CODE 1G3V8 11. SHIP TO/MARK FOR COI	FACILITY CODE		12 1	DAVM	ENT W	ILL BE MAI	HOWN IN:	COD	E HQ0338		
See Schedule 13. AUTHORITY FOR USING OTHER THAN FULL AND OPEN COMPETITION:				DFAS-COISOUTH ENTITLEMENT OPERATIONS P.O. BOX 182264 COLUMBUS OH 43218-2264 14. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA See Schedule							
	. 2304(c)() [] 41 U.S.C. 253(c)() 15B. SUPPLIES/ SERVICES			15C. QUANTITY 15D. UNIT				15E. UNIT PRICE 15F. AMOUNT		OUNT	
SEE	SCHEDULE										
	16	TABLE C	DE CY	NTEN		. TO TAL A	IOUNTOF	CONTRACT	\$7,891,4	03,114.43	
(X) SEC. DESCRIPT		PAGE(S)					Γ	DESCRIPTION		PAGE(S)	
PARTI - THES		1						RACTCLAUSES		Inco	
X A SOLICITATION/ CONTRACT FORM 1 - 100 X B SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES/ COSTS 101 - 22				X I CONTRACT CLAUSES 299 PART III – LIST OF DO CUMENTS, EXHIBITS AND O THER ATTAC H.							
C DESCRIPTION/ SPECS/ WORK STATEMENT			X J LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 300								
D PACKAGING AND MARKING			PART IV - REPRESENTATIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS						-		
E INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE				K REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS AND OTHER STATEMENTS OF OFFERORS							
		225 - 23	-	L		STRS., CONDS., AND NOTICES TO OFFERORS					
X H SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 248 - 29											
				NEGOTIATED PROCUREMENT) OR 18 (SEALED-BID PROCUREMENT) AS APPLICABLE							
 17 [X] CONTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT Contractor is required to sign this document and return1 copies to issuing office) Contractor agrees to furnish and deliver all items or perform all the services set forth or otherwise identified above and on any continuation sheets for the consideration stated herein The rights and obligations of the parties to this contract shall be subject to and governed by the following documents: (a) this award/contract, (b) the solicitation, if any, and (c) such provisions, representations, certifications, and specifications, as are attached or incorporated by reference herein (Attachments are listed herein) 19A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print) 				18 [] SEALED-BID AWARD (Contractor is not required to sign this document) Your bid on Solicitation Number							
19B. NAME OF CONTRACTOR 19C. DATE SIGNED BY			20B.	UNIT	ED ST A	TES OF AM	ERICA		20C. DATE	SIGNED	
			BY (Signature of Contracting Officer)					er)	08-Apr-2016		

Section A - Solicitation/Contract Form

CONTINUATION AGREEMENT

1) The purpose of this action is to award Other Transaction Agreement (OTA) number W15QKN-16-9-1002 with the Medical CBRN Defense Consortium (MCDC) MCDCin care of Advanced Technology International (ATI).

2) The total estimated amount of all projects to be issued under this OTA is not to exceed \$10,000,000,000. The term of this agreement is twenty (20) years from the date of award of this agreement.

3) All projects awarded under this agreement will be added as a CLIN to Section B via a modification to the OTA W15QKN-16-9-1002.

Section H - Special Contract Requirements

AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE U.S. ARMY CONTRACTING COMMAND – NEW JERSEY PHIPPS ROAD, BUILDING 9 PICATINNY ARSENAL, NJ 07806-5000

AND

MEDICAL CBRN DEFENSE CONSORTIUM (MCDC) in care of its CONSORTIUM MANAGEMENT FIRM, ADVANCED TECHNOLOGY INTERNATIONAL (ATI) 315 SIGMA DRIVE SUMMERVILLE, SC 29486

Agreement No.: W15QKN-16-9-1002

Agreement Term: The term of this agreement is twenty (20) years from the date of award. The estimated value of the projects awarded under the terms and conditions of this agreement is estimated to not exceed \$10 billion.

Authority: 10 U.S.C. § 2371b, Section 815 of the 2016 National Defense Authorization Act (NDAA), Public Law (P.L.) 114-92.

This Agreement is entered into between the United States of America, hereinafter called the Government, represented by the U.S. Army Contracting Command – New Jersey, and the Medical CBRN Defense Consortium (MCDC) by its Consortium Managed Firm, Advanced Technical International, hereinafter referred to as "MCDC" pursuant to and under U.S. Federal law.

MCDC c/o Advanced Technology International 315 SIGMA DRIVE SUMMERVILLE, SC 29486 FOR UNITED STATES OF AMERICA DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE U.S. ARMY CONTRACTING COMMAND-NEW JERSEY

, Executive Committee Chair

, Agreements Officer

(Date)

(Date)

(b) (6)

W15QKN-16-9-1002 (martins201958) Page 5 of 55

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLES	TITLE					
ARTICLE I	Scope of the Agreement					
ARTICLE II	Term					
ARTICLE III	Management of the Project					
ARTICLE IV	Agreement Administration					
ARTICLE V	Obligation and Payment					
ARTICLE VI	Nontraditional Defense/Cost Sharing					
ARTICLE VII	Disputes					
ARTICLE VIII	Confidential Information					
ARTICLE IX	Publication and Academic Rights					
ARTICLE X	Patent Rights					
ARTICLE XI	Data Rights					
ARTICLE XII	Export Control					
ARTICLE XIII	Title and Disposition of Property					
ARTICLE XIV	Civil Rights Act					
ARTICLE XV	No Small Business Affiliation					
ARTICLE XVI	Antitrust					
ARTICLE XVII	Security & OPSEC					
ARTICLE XVIII	Safety					
ARTICLE XIX	Representations and Warranties					
ARTICLE XX	Liability of the Parties					
ARTICLE XXI	General Provisions					
ARTICLE XXII	Assignment of Agency					
ARTICLE XXIII	Order of Precedence					
ARTICLE XXIV	Execution					
ARTICLE XXV	Use of Undefinitized Project Actions					
ARTICLE XXVI	Section 889 Prohibition					

W15QKN-16-9-1002 (martins201958) Page 6 of 55

ARTICLE I: SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

A. Background

The U.S. Army Contracting Command-New Jersey (ACC-NJ) is entering into a Section 815 Prototype Other Transaction Agreement (OTA) with the Medical CBRN Defense Consortium (MCDC), c/o Advanced Technology International, 315 Sigma Drive, Summerville, SC 29486. The Joint Project Manager for Medical Countermeasure Systems (JPM-MCS) through the Joint Program Executive Office for Chemical and Biological Defense (JPEO-CBD) seeks to collaborate with the MCDC to carry out a coordinated research and development program. An OTA is being proposed with the purpose of conducting Research and Development into medical, pharmaceutical, and diagnostic technologies to enhance mission effectiveness of military personnel. The MCDC was formed in response to the Government's expressed interest to engage with an industry consortium comprised of traditional and nontraditional government contractors, small and large businesses, for-profit and not-for-profit entities, academic organizations and their affiliates for the purpose of entering into an OTA for prototype projects.

Under this agreement and associated awards, the Government, along with the non-government members from the MCDC, shall perform coordinated planning and research and development prototype efforts designed to encompass the areas contained within the scope of this OTA as listed in Article I, Section C.

B. Definitions

"Academic Research Institution" means accredited institutions (colleges, universities or other educational institutions) of higher learning in the U.S.

"Agreements Officer (AO)" is the U.S. Army Contracting Command – New Jersey's warranted Contracting Officer authorized to sign the final agreement for the Government.

"Agreements Officer Representative (AOR)" is the individual designated by the Government on a per project basis to monitor all technical aspects and assist in agreement administration of the specific project; the AOR shall only assist in agreement administration of the specific project to the extent delegated such administration authority in writing in the AOR delegation letter by the responsible Agreements Officer.

"Basket" is an electronic file containing proposals that have been submitted by MCDC Members in response to Requests for Prototype Proposals (RPP), reviewed by the Government, and favorably evaluated in accordance with the procedures outlined in Section C of this Article.

"Cash Contribution" means a MCDC member organization's financial resources expended to conduct a project awarded under this Agreement. The cash contribution can be derived from MCDC member organization funds or outside sources or may also come from non-federal contract or grant revenues or from profit or fee on a federal procurement contract. A MCDCmember organization's own source of funds may include corporate retained earnings, current or prospective Independent Research and Development (IR&D) funds or any other indirect cost pool allocation. New or concurrent IR&D funds can be utilized as a cash contribution provided those funds identified by the MCDCmember organization are to be spent on the conduct of a project's Statement of Work. Prior IR&D will not be considered as part of the MCDCmember organization's cash or in kind contributions nor will fee be considered on the PAH's cost sharing portion. Cash contributions include the funds a MCDC member organization will spend for labor (including benefits and direct overhead), materials, new equipment (prorated if appropriate), subcontractor efforts expended on a project, and restocking the parts and material consumed under a project.

"Consortium Management Firm (CMF)" refers to the organization acting on behalf of the MCDC to execute and administer the efforts under the Other Transaction Agreement for this program as defined in the specific agreement entered into between the MCDC and the CMF. The current CMF is ATI. The MCDC reserves the right to replace the CMF at any time.

"Cost Share" means resources expended by the PAH on the proposed project SOW and subject to the direction of the AOR. There are two kinds of cost share: cash contribution and in-kind contribution. Cost Share may only be proposed and collected on cost-reimbursement type agreements.

"Contracting Activity" means an element of an agency designated by the agency head and delegated broad authority regarding acquisition functions. It also means elements or another agency designated by the director of a defense agency which has been delegated contracting authority through its agency charter.

"Date of Completion" is the date on which all work is completed or the date on which the period of performance ends.

"Development" means the systematic use, under whatever name, of scientific and technical knowledge in the design, development, test, or evaluation of an existing or potential new technology, product or service (or of an improvement in an existing technology, product or service) for the purpose of meeting specific performance requirements or objectives. Development includes the research functions of design engineering, prototyping, and engineering testing.

"Effective Date" means the date when this Agreement is signed and executed by the Agreements Officer for the Government.

"Government" means the US Government and its departments and agencies.

"Government Fiscal Year" means the period commencing on October 1 and ending September 30 of the following calendar year.

"In Kind Contribution" means the MCDC member organization's nonfinancial resources expended by the MCDC member organization to conduct a project, such as wear and tear on in-place capital assets like machinery or the prorated value of space used for the conduct of a project, and the reasonable fair market value (appropriately prorated) of equipment, materials, and other property used in the conduct of the project.

"JPM-MCS" means the Joint Project Manager-Medical Countermeasure Systems Office created for the advanced development of medical countermeasures for chemical and biological defense. The JPM-MCS is also the program management office for this overall effort. The JPM-MCS includes an array of stakeholders involved in the development of prototype hardware, software, and system technologies.

"Medical CBRN Defense Consortium (MCDC)" is the consortium formed by industry in response to the Government's expressed interest to quickly provide the warfighter with safe and effective chemical, biological, radiological, and nuclear countermeasures. The MCDC is comprised of Traditional and Nontraditional Defense Contractors, including small and large (other than small) businesses, for profit, and not for profit entities, and academic research institutions

"MCDC Executive Committee" is the Executive Committee, comprised of Traditional and Nontraditional Defense Contractors, including small and large businesses, for profit and not for profit entities, and academic research institutions.

"MCDC Members" means the Nontraditional and Traditional Defense Contractors, including small and large businesses, for profit and not for profit entities, and Academic Research Institutions that are members in good standing of the MCDC.

"Milestone" means a scheduled event signifying the completion of a major deliverable or a set of related deliverables

"Nontraditional Defense Contractor" with respect to applicable authority, means an entity that is not currently performing and has not performed, for at least the one-year period preceding the solicitation of sources by the Department of Defense for the procurement or transaction, any contract or subcontract for the Department of

Defense that is subject to full coverage under the cost accounting standards prescribed pursuant to section 1502 of title 41 and the regulations implementing such section.

"Other Transaction Agreement (OTA)" or "Agreement" refers to the Section 815 Other Transaction Agreement between the Government and the MCDC by its Consortium Management Firm, Advanced Technology International, Agreement No. W15QKN-16-9-1002.

"Other Transactions for Prototype Projects" refers to this type of Other Transaction Agreement (OT). Section 815 of Public Law 114-92 authorizes the use of OTAs, under the authority of 10 U.S.C. 2371(b), under certain circumstances for prototype projects directly relevant to enhancing the mission effectiveness of military personnel and supporting the platforms, systems, components, or materials proposed to be acquired or developed by the Department of Defense, or to improvement of platforms, systems, components, or materials in use by the armed forces. This type of OTA is treated by DoD as an acquisition instrument, commonly referred to as an "other transaction" for a prototype project or Section 815 "other transaction".

"Parties" means Government and the MCDC by its consortium manager where collectively identified and "Party" where each entity is individually identified.

"Payable Milestone" means that once a milestone has been met (see definition of "milestone"), the Government can approve payment to the MCDC of a predetermined dollar amount in relation to performance of a particular project under the Other Transaction Agreement.

"Program Manager" means the Technical Administrator for the Program (located at the JPM-MCS) responsible for Government oversight of the MCDC OTA program.

"Project" refers to the scope of work being completed under a Project Agreement.

"Project Agreement (PA)" means that agreement between the MCDC, by its CMF, and the MCDC member entity whose proposal is evaluated and competitively selected by the Government for funding, establishing the scope of work, terms and conditions for the MCDC member entity performance and payment under the Government funded project. Project Agreements shall comply with all provisions contained within the OTA and any other supporting documents referenced therein. The Project Agreement is initiated by the CMF based on the Technical Direction Letter sent by the Government to the CMF.

"Project Agreement Holder (PAH)" means the MCDC member entity issued a Project Agreement by the MCDC.

"Selection Announcement Letter" means the Government document to be issued to the MCDC via the CMF documenting the Government's decision to make the award of a Project Agreement and/or place one (1) or more proposal(s) in the "Basket" and/or reject one (1) or more proposal(s).

"Technical Direction Letter" is a Government document to be issued to the CMF reflecting the Government's decision to select and fund all or part of a particular proposal submitted by a MCDC member or team of MCDC members through the RPP process conducted under this OTA. The TDL shall establish the scope of work, terms and conditions for performance and payment and include the MCDC member proposal selected for Government funding. Where a specific Government agency laboratory, test facility, center or other location will be used by the MCDC member entity or team of MCDC member entities in performance of the Project Agreement, it will be identified and the cost of such use, whether Government-contributed or MCDC member reimbursed, will be identified in the TDL.

"United States Army Contracting Command – New Jersey Contracting Activity" (ACC-NJ) means the contracting activity who is designated as the lead Government organization in charge of executing the Program.

"White Paper" means a document limited to a few pages prepared and submitted by a MCDC member(s) in response to a Government solicitation issued under the terms and conditions of this Agreement that briefly describes and summarizes a technology idea or concept for an indicated research area in a Government-specified format. The White Papers are evaluated by the Government to determine whether submission of a full proposal on the summarized concept or idea might be warranted. To the extent that a MCDC member(s) desires to include proprietary information in the white paper it shall be identified and marked in accordance with the terms for protection of information under Article VIII. Confidential Information.

C. Scope

The Government in conjunction with the consortium shall perform a coordinated research and development program designed to support the DoD's medical, pharmaceutical, and diagnostic requirements as related to enhancing the mission effectiveness of military personnel. The mission of JPM-MCS is to provide the U.S. military forces and the nation safe, effective, and innovative medical solutions to counter Chemical Biological Radiological and Nuclear (CBRN) threats. Under this agreement and associated awards, the Government along with the consortium, shall perform coordinated planning and research and development prototype efforts in support of the JPM-MCS mission through the development of products in three (3) major Medical Countermeasure Systems (MCS) objective areas:

- Detection: Systems and devices to identify CBRN agents and assist in making medical decisions
- Prevention: Prophylaxis, pretreatment, and post-exposure prophylaxis
- Treatment: Therapeutics (post-exposure, post-symptomatic)

The Government will determine which endeavors to pursue and projects to fund. At any time throughout the term of this agreement, the Government may address the needs for the desired MCS objective areas or other related Government needs as they arise. The Parties agree that other organizations and agencies within the U.S. Government may participate in the collaborative activities through a Memorandum of Agreement or other such arrangement. It is anticipated that these other organizations may include JPEO-CBD and DTRA.

Request for Prototype Proposal (RPP) Process:

Once the Government identifies a need under one of the MCS objective areas above, the Government will issue a Request for Prototype Proposal (RPP). The RPP will include a Request for White Papers (RWP) and/or a Request for Prototype Proposal (RPP) to the Consortium Management Firm (CMF). Due dates will be indicated for each. The CMF shall in turn issue a similar request to MCDC's member entities, for which the Government will review and evaluate all responses. The Government will be solely responsible for evaluation of the white papers and/or proposal submissions, as applicable. If the RPP includes a RWP, only members submitting white papers will be permitted to submit full proposal submissions. Based on the evaluation of the white papers, the Government will make a recommendation on whether the member should or should not submit a full proposal submission. Any member submitting a white paper, regardless of the Government's recommendation, may submit a proposal.

MCDC member white papers and proposals shall be submitted to the CMF in accordance with the RPP instructions which will include evaluation criteria and a Statement of Work (SOW) template on the due date indicated in the RPP. The CMF will review white paper and proposal submissions for completeness and format compliance. The CMF shall in turn prepare and transmit MCDC's member's white papers and proposals to the Government for evaluation. The Government will be responsible for technical evaluation and selection of the projects from the proposals submitted. The CMF will assess the reasonableness and completeness of the cost estimates and then provide a formal assessment to the Government. The Government Agreement Officer will review this assessment and make the final determination regarding whether the negotiated project cost is fair and reasonable. All Project Agreements will be subject to discussions/negotiations and proposal updates, as appropriate, prior to execution.

Once all steps are complete, the Government will issue a Technical Direction Letter (TDL) to the CMF for the authorization and execution of the selected project to be performed by the selected MCDC's member entity(ies). Once the CMF receives notification of selection of a project for funding via TDL, the CMF will enter into a Project Agreement with the MCDC member.

A modification will be included with the TDL, which will include the funding for the negotiated and agreed-upon project. After receipt of the TDL and review and execution of the funding modification, the CMF shall enter into a Project Agreement (PA) with MCDC member whose project was selected. MCDC CMF shall administer the Government-funded Project Agreements. The Government's designated Agreements Officer Representative (AOR)

for the specific project will supervise the technical work performed by MCDC's member entity in execution of the PA. The Government reserves the right to revise the terms and conditions of these project in accordance with Article III, Section D.

Placement in the Electronic "Basket File":

Qualifying proposals, not eligible for current funding, may be entered into an electronic basket and subject to award for up to thirty-six (36) months. The RPP will contain the available ratings and their definitions to be assigned to proposals as a result of the technical evaluation as well as which specific ratings will qualify a proposal for inclusion in the Basket. The Government reserves the right to determine which, if any, proposals are to be selected according to the published criteria.

Once in the Basket, a proposal may be identified for award by the Government based on Government need and availability of funding. The Government reserves the right to 1.) request that the MCDC member who submitted the identified proposal, scale or otherwise adjust the original proposal, and to 2.) fund all or part of the identified proposal. The MCDC member will have an opportunity to update their proposal, as applicable, if selected from the basket. The Government will review any updated information provided by the MCDC member and/or CMF. Upon the Government's decision to fund such a proposal from the Basket, the CMF will receive notification of the award decision through a TDL whereupon the CMF will enter into a Project Agreement with the indicated MCDC member as required.

A selected proposal will reside in the Basket for thirty-six (36) months from the date the corresponding RPP is closed unless funded or the submitting MCDC member requests in writing beforehand to have it removed.

SBIR Phase III Project Requests

It will be incumbent upon the MCDC member, on their own with some general support and guidance from the CMF, to find a Government Technical POC with both (1) available funding and (2) an interest in furthering technology developed under a current or prior SBIR project. Upon doing so, the Government Technical POC will coordinate the feasibility of placing the award under this Agreement with the Government AO and OTA Program Manager and the following areas will be considered when making a determination for appropriateness of award under this Agreement:

• How the proposed effort derives from, extends, or logically concludes efforts performed under prior SBIR funding agreements;

- How the proposed effort fits within the definition of a prototype effort related to medical, pharmaceutical, and diagnostic technologies to enhance mission effectiveness of military personnel in accordance with the statutory requirement;
- How the proposed effort fits within the overall scope of work and the goals and objectives of this Agreement.

Should the Government AO and the OTA Program Manager determine it is appropriate to award the SBIR Phase III under this Agreement, the Government AO will send a proposal request to the MCDC member through the CMF, as is standard for any Government request under this Agreement. The CMF will provide a cost analysis summary to the Government Agreements Officer (AO) for consideration in the Government's award determination. The Government will evaluate the proposal, conduct any necessary negotiations through the CMF, and make an award determination. If the Government makes the determination to award to the MCDC member, the Government AO will issue a TDL letter to the CMF, resulting in the issuance of a Project Agreement between the CMF and MCDC member.

SBIR Phase III awards under this Agreement shall include the Data rights provisions and Data rights granted to the MCDC member contained within Article XI of this Agreement. All administrative, reporting, and other aspects of awards made for SBIR Phase III efforts under this Agreement will be in accordance with the terms and conditions of

the OTA. MCDC Members must have been awarded and performed under a previous SBIR Phase I and/or Phase II contract in order to qualify for SBIR Phase III award under this agreement.

D. Goals/Objectives

The following goals/objectives will be pursued through the execution of this Agreement:

- Accelerate the development of mission critical technologies in the areas of concern from applied research into advanced development.
- Deliver therapeutic MCM prototypes targeting viral, bacterial, and biological toxin targets of interest to the DOD. MCM prototypes are drug products that have completed all or part of the activities required to support FDA licensure. This may include meeting warfighter requirements of protection against an aerosolized route of exposure.
- Deliver enabling technologies that will support the development and regulatory review of MCM prototypes. The enabling technologies can include animal models of viral, bacterial or biological toxin disease and pathogenesis (multiple routes of exposure), assays, diagnostic technologies or other platform technologies applicable to development and regulatory review of MCM.
- Develop prototype candidates for the prophylaxis, treatment and diagnosis of Chemical threats. This will include diagnosis of, and prophylaxis and treatment for, exposure to traditional and emerging chemical nerve agent threats, as well as other emerging chemical threat agents other than nerve agents.
- Develop prototype candidates for the prophylaxis, treatment and diagnosis of Radiological and Nuclear threats. This will include prototype candidates for diagnosis of, and prophylaxis and treatment for Acute Radiation Syndrome.
- Develop soldier-carried autoinjector delivery devices for single drug administration. Develop soldiercarried autoinjector delivery devices for administration of two or more drugs.
- Develop vaccine-manufacturing platforms that offer early stage manufacturing flexibility and diversity using a deep knowledge of protein(s) expression in a biological system that is reproducible and scalable, and preferably with direct FDA experience. The goal is to manufacture and test identified protective molecule(s) and target molecule(s) (along with associated reagents and standards) in multiple scalable, flexible manufacturing platforms encompassing a diverse array of manufacturing systems (e.g., insect, mammalian, live viral, plant, *E.coli*, yeast, etc.) for use in appropriate animal model(s) and in Phase 1 trials.
- Pharmaceutical development will address the FDA Animal Rule, as appropriate.
- Utilize adjuvants and excipients supporting the ability to develop up to 300,000 equivalent doses within 60 days at clinical quality.
- Support a family of systems diagnostic approach that increases the speed, accuracy, and confidence of
 agent identification and disease diagnosis. Diagnostic areas include those for organisms that circulate
 freely and at relatively high numbers at or near the onset of symptoms, organisms that circulate in low
 numbers early in infection but then integrate with host cells, organisms that have significant genomic
 diversity from strain to strain, and non-BW agents such as toxins/chemical agents/radiological agents
 that do not replicate and require low quantities to cause illness.
- Support the Defense Biological Products Assurance Office (formally the Critical Reagents Program), the principal DoD resource of high quality, validated, and standardized biological reference materials, reagents, and assays, as necessary.
- DoD Advanced Development and Manufacturing Capabilities: To facilitate lessons learned and to
 ensure DoD MCM product development schedules are not impacted, the consortium will consider
 Advanced Development and Manufacturing (ADM) capability contractors for biologics manufacturing
 activities for monoclonal antibodies, vaccines, and recombinant proteins may utilize the DoD funded
 facility.
- Pursue collaborative research with non-traditional technology providers in a manner that enables effective transition of technologies to Government prototyping programs during any phase of life cycle support (affordability, manufacturability, sustainment, etc.).
- E. Reports

The MCDC member organizations conducting projects in accordance with this Agreement shall maintain records of the activities performed and funding expended under the projects and the results of any studies analyses, tests, and other investigations conducted. Based on the progress of the funded projects and other information known to the AO or authorized designee, the MCS Program Office shall review the relevant projects throughout the period to determine if any changes to planning or budget are required. If such a change is expected which will cause a need to modify this Agreement, the Technical Direction Letter or an individual Project Agreement may be modified to incorporate such changes. The AO is, the only authorized representative of the Government who may make modifications to this Agreement. PAHs shall submit the following reports to the CMF who will review and provide one cumulative report detailing status of all funded projects to the MCS Program Office.

- a.) Monthly Reports: due at the end of each month, the CMF shall provide a roster of active consortium members, to include the number of new traditional defense contractors, small businesses, non-traditional, and academic institutions. This status will enable the Government and CMF to work together to cover a spectrum of requirements and target recruitment efforts.
- b.) Quarterly Report. The report will have two major sections:
- (i) Technical Status Report. The technical status report will detail technical progress to date and report on all problems, technical issues or major developments during the reporting period. Each of the topics described below shall be addressed for the effort performed:
 - (1) A comparison of actual accomplishments with the goals and objectives of the project established for the period.
 - (2) Reasons why established goals and objectives were not met, if appropriate.
 - (3) Other pertinent information including, when appropriate, analysis and explanation of cost variances.
 - (4) A cumulative chronological list of written publications in technical journals. Include those in press as well as manuscripts in preparation and planned for later submission. Indicate likely journals, authors, and titles.
 - (5) Papers presented at meetings, conferences, seminars, etc.
 - (6) Current MCDC Membership List.
- (ii) Business Status Report. The business status report shall provide summarized details of the resource status of this Agreement, including the status of the contributions by all participants. This report will include a quarterly accounting of current expenditures. Any major deviations from the agreed to project plans shall be explained with discussion of proposed actions to address the deviations. The report will also include an accounting of interest earned on Government Funds, if any. It is not expected that any interest will accrue under the Project Agreement(s), as milestone payments will be tracked and adjusted accordingly. In any event, the Government reserves the right to require interest amounts in excess of \$250 per year to be remitted to the US Treasury.
- (iii) OTA Metrics Questionnaire. The MCDC, through its CMF, shall provide a completed "Other Transactions Agreement Metrics Questionnaire" (Attachment 1) with each Quarterly Report.
- c.) Annual Technical Report. Annual technical reports are required for projects whose periods of performance are greater than one year. The PAH's report will provide a concise and factual discussion of the significant accomplishments and progress during the year covered by the report. The CMF shall submit an Annual Technical Report to the MCS Program Office with a notification to the AOR for the respective project.

d.) Final Technical Report.

- (i) Final Technical Report (FTR). A Final Technical Report shall be submitted to the CMF within thirty (30) calendar days of the completion of the project. This report will provide a comprehensive, cumulative, and substantive summary of the progress and significant accomplishments achieved during the total period of the effort. Each of the topics described above shall be addressed as appropriate for the effort performed. Upon receipt, the AOR will review and provide any comments within 30 days. If necessary, the PAH will update the FTR within 30 days of receipt of AOR's comments. Once the CMF has informed PAH that the FTR has been approved by the AOR, the PAH shall forward a copy of the FTR to the Defense Technical Information Center, Attn. DTIC-O, 8725 John J. Kingman Road, Suite 0944, Fort Belvoir, VA 22060-6218.
- (ii) Format. The cover and title page shall be Standard Form (SF) 298, Report Documentation Page. Item 13 of the form should contain a 100 to 200 word abstract summarizing technical progress during the reporting period. Style should be third person singular using past tense. Jargon, special symbols or notations, subscripts, mathematical symbols or foreign alphabet letters are not permitted. All pages should be prepared for acquisition and distribution by the Defense Technical Information Center (DTIC). All pages should be good quality for copying purposes. The report shall be prepared in accordance with American National Standards Institute (ANSI) document Z39.18-1987, "Scientific and Technical Reports: Organization, Preparation, and Production, " which may be obtained from American National Standards Institute Incorporated, 1430 Broadway, New York, NY, 10018. The FTR front page shall be marked in a conspicuous place with a distribution statement to denote the extent of its availability for distribution, release, and disclosure without additional approvals or authorizations.
- e.) Final Business Status Report. The final business status report shall provide summarized details of the resource status of this Agreement, including the status of the contributions by all participants. This report will include a final accounting of cumulative expenditures. If a project is terminated prior to the end of a quarter or a year and sufficient funding is available the project receipt through the CMF must submit a final technical and business status report in the same format as detailed herein.

Note: Deficiencies in regulatory reports must be adequately assessed by the Government, MCDC and the individual performer, or consortium as a whole, to come to resolution. The Government will notify MCDC if reporting and/or performance are not sufficient and work collaboratively with MCDC toward a resolution.

ARTICLE II: TERM

A. The Term of this Agreement

This OTA will be available for use for a period of twenty (20) years from the date the OTA is awarded. If at any time funds expended exceed the face value prior to the expiration of the term, the Parties have no obligation to continue performance and may elect to cease their efforts at that point. Total funds obligated to this Agreement are reflected through cumulative total of amounts obligated through the individual Project Agreements, based on direction given to the CMF via TDLs and modifications adding funds to the Agreement and will be increased annually, or more frequently, as appropriated or allocated, and mutually agreed upon. Provisions of this Agreement, which, by their express terms or by necessary implication, apply for periods of time other than specified in Article II herein, shall be given effect, notwithstanding this Article. The estimated value of projects awarded under the terms and conditions of this agreement is \$10 Billion.

B. Termination of this Agreement by Mutual Agreement

Except for the rights and obligations with respect to proprietary information and/or specific intellectual property agreements between or amongst the Government and the MCDC member organizations, unless extended by mutual written agreement of the Parties, this Agreement shall automatically terminate by written agreement of the Parties. Unless otherwise directed by the AO, individual Project Agreements made between the MCDC CMF and the MCDC member organizations pursuant to this Agreement shall also terminate upon the termination of this Agreement.

C. Termination Provisions

Subject to a reasonable determination that the program, or a project funded under the program, will not produce beneficial results commensurate with the expenditure of resources, the Government may terminate performance of work under this OTA or a specific project, in whole or in part, if the AO determines that a termination is in the Government's interest. The AO shall terminate by delivering to the MCDC through its CMF a Notice of Termination specifying the extent of termination and the effective date.

After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by the AO, the MCDC through its CMF shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any amounts due:

(1) Stop work and direct its PAHs to stop work as specified in the notice.

(2) Place no further Project Agreements or orders (referred to as orders in this clause) for materials, services, or facilities, except as necessary to complete the continued portion of the OTA or project.

(3) Terminate all orders to the extent they relate to the work terminated.

(4) Assign to the Government, as directed by the AO, all right, title, and interest of the MCDC and/or PAH under the orders terminated, in which case the Government shall have the right to settle or to pay any termination settlement proposal arising out of those terminations.

(5) With approval or ratification to the extent required by the AO, the CMF may settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement proposals arising from the termination of orders; the approval or ratification will be final for purposes of this clause.

(6) As directed by the AO, obtain from the PAH(s) under the terminated portion of the Agreement a transfer of title to the following where applicable and deliver to the Government --

(i) The fabricated or unfabricated parts, work in process, completed work, supplies, and other material produced or acquired for the work terminated; and

(ii) The completed or partially completed plans, drawings, information, and other property that, if the order had been completed, would have been required to be furnished to the Government.

(7) Complete performance of any work not terminated, if applicable.

(8) Take any action that may be necessary, or that the AO may direct, for the protection and preservation of the property related to this project that is in the possession of the PAH(s) and in which the Government has or may acquire an interest.

(9) Use commercially reasonable efforts to sell, as directed or authorized by the AO, any property of the types referred to under Article II.C. Termination Provisions, (6)(i) and (ii); provided, however, that the MCDC by its CMF.

(i) is not required to extend credit to any purchaser and

(ii) may arrange for the PAH who was performing the terminated work to acquire the property under the conditions prescribed by, and at prices approved by, the AO.

(iii) will in no event be required to continue with such efforts for more than three (3) months after notice by the AO to sell or disposition such property.

(10) The PAH has no obligation to continue to cost share on the terminated project or terminated portion of the project.

The requirement for at least 1/3 cost share of the total project cost by the PAH is assessed prior to award. In the event that during the course of the performance of the Project Agreement any of the parties to the Project Agreement believe the cost sharing funds available will be insufficient, the PAH shall notify the Government within thirty (30) days of the event that gave rise to the insufficient cost sharing funds. The Government will determine whether it is in its best interest to either renegotiate the scope and/or terms of the Project Agreement to meet the cost share requirement or terminate the Project Agreement in whole or in part.

The proceeds of any transfer or disposition of project property will be applied to reduce any payments to be made by the Government under that particular project, including credited to the price or cost of the work, or paid in any other manner directed by the AO.

In the event of a termination of the Agreement, the Government shall have patent rights as described in Article X, Patent Rights, and rights in Data as described in Article XI, Data Rights. Failure of the Parties to agree to an equitable adjustment shall be resolved pursuant to Article VII, Disputes.

D. Termination Cost

The Government and MCDC through its CMF will negotiate in good faith equitable reimbursement for work performed toward accomplishment of the task or tasks of individual projects. The Government will allow full credit for the Government share of the obligations properly incurred by a PAH or the CMF prior to termination. Costs incurred by a PAH or the CMF during a suspension or after termination of a project are not allowable unless the Agreements Officer expressly authorizes them in either the notices of suspension, termination, or subsequently. Other PAH's costs incurred during a suspension or after termination which are necessary and not reasonably avoidable are allowable if:

- (a) The costs result from obligations which were properly incurred by the PAH or the CMF before the effective date of the suspension or termination, are not in anticipation of it, and in the case of a termination, are non-cancellable; and
- (b) The costs would be allowable if the project was not suspended or the award expired normally at the end of the funding period in which the termination takes effect.
- E. Close-out Procedure.

If the Government funds an individual Project Agreement and then subsequently terminates the agreement or the requirements of the agreement are met, the following closeout procedures apply:

- (a) Definitions.
 - (i) "Closeout" the process by which the Government determines that all applicable administrative actions and all required work have been completed by the PAH and the Government.
- (ii) "Date of Completion" the date on which all work is completed or the date on an amendment thereto on which the period of performance ends.
- (iii) "Disallowed costs" those charges that the Government or its representative determines to be unallowable, in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

- (b) Upon request, the Government shall make prompt payments to the PAH through the CMF for allowable reimbursable costs under the MCS Project Agreement being closed out.
- (c) The MCDC through its CMF shall immediately refund any balance of unobligated (unencumbered) cash that the Government has paid and that is not authorized to be retained by the PAH for use in the performance of this Agreement.
- (d) The Government shall obtain from the MCDC through its CMF within 90 calendar days after the date of completion of a MCS Project Agreement all financial, performance, and other reports required as a condition of the MCS Project Agreement. The Government may grant extensions when requested by the PAH through the CMF.
- (e) When authorized, the Government shall make a settlement for any upward or downward adjustments to the Government's share of costs after these reports are received based on final, actual expenditures in accordance with the Termination Costs provision of the Agreement.
- (f) Quick close-out procedures similar to FAR 42.708 shall be followed.
- (g) The MCDC through its CMF shall account for any property received from the Government.
- F. Stop Work

The AO may, at any time, by written order to the MCDC through its CMF, require a PAH to stop all, or any part, of the work called for under this Agreement or any Project Agreement for a period of 90 days after the written order is delivered to the MCDC through its CMF or the PAH, and for any further period to which the parties may agree. The order shall be specifically identified as a stop-work order issued under this section. Upon receipt of the order, the MCDC through its CMF and PAH shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the period of work stoppage. Within a period of 90 days after a stop-work is delivered to the PAH, or within any extension of that period to which the parties shall have agreed, the MCDC through its CMF shall either:

- (a) Cancel the stop-work order; or
- (b) Terminate the work covered by the Agreement or Project Agreement as provided in Article II, Term and Termination.

If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled, the PAH shall resume work. The Government through the MCDC CMF shall make an equitable adjustment in the delivery schedule or Project Agreement estimated cost/price, or both, and the Government's share of the Project Agreement shall be modified, in writing, accordingly, if—

(1) The stop-work order results in an increase in the time required for, or in the PAH's cost properly allocable to, the performance of any part of the Project Agreement; and

(2) The PAH asserts its right to the adjustment within 30 days after the end of the period of work stoppage; provided, that, if the Government decides the facts justify the action, the Government through the MCDC CMF may receive and act upon a proposal submitted at any time before final payment under this Project Agreement.

If a stop work order is not canceled and the work covered by the Project Agreement is terminated in accordance with Article II, the MCDC CMF shall work with the PAH to negotiate an equitable reimbursement in accordance with Article II.B, Termination Provisions.

ARTICLE III: MANAGEMENT OF THE PROJECT

A. The Medical CBRN Defense Consortium (MCDC)

The MCDC, as defined in this Agreement, was formed to work with the Government and provide input in developing technologies to support the Department of Defense's (DoD) medical, pharmaceutical, and diagnostic requirements as related to enhancing the mission effectiveness of military personnel ultimately resulting in fully executed research and development prototype projects selected by the Government. Every Member in this MCDC is independent of the other, and there is no affiliation between the MCDC members within the definition of 13 C.F.R. 121.103 of the Federal Small Business Regulations and no such affiliation is intended either by the formation or implementation of the MCDC.

As appointed by the MCDC Executive Committee, the CMF has the authority to execute this Other Transaction Agreement (OTA) on behalf of the MCDC and has the responsibility for day to day overall administration of this Agreement, subject to the supervision of the MCDC Executive Committee.

B. The following MCDC decisions are subject to the ACC-NJ approval:

- 1. Changes to the MCDC Articles of Collaboration if such changes substantially alter the relationship of the Parties as originally agreed upon when the OTA was executed;
- Changes to, or elimination of, any ACC-NJ funding allocation to any MCDC Member as technically and/or financially justified.

C. Management and Project Structure

Technical and project management of the coordinated research program established under this Agreement shall be accomplished through the management structures and processes detailed in this Article.

The Government competitively selected the MCDC, organized by its Consortium Management Firm Advanced Technology International, a Section 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization. MCDC has entered into an agreement with ATI authorizing ATI to enter into this OTA as the consortium manager, engage in overall day to day management of the MCDC under the guidance of and as designated by the MCDC Executive Committee, including technical, programmatic, reporting, financial, administrative and contractual matters and administer Project Agreements required for performance under this OTA.

As established by funded projects under the OTA, the Government Program Manager shall fully participate in the appropriate program technical meetings held by the MCDC. The AORs and Other Government personnel, as deemed appropriate, also may participate in the technical portion of these meetings.

D. Modifications

As a result of scheduled meetings, end of program reviews, or at any time during the term of the Agreement, research progress or results may indicate that a change in the Agreement's scope, objectives or Term would be beneficial to program objectives. Recommendations for modifications, including justifications to support any changes to the Agreement Scope, will be documented in a letter and submitted by the CMF to the Program Manager with a copy to the AO. This documentation letter will detail the technical, chronological, and financial impact of the proposed modification to the research program. The Program Manager shall be responsible for the review and verification of any recommendations to revise or otherwise modify the Agreement Scope or other proposed changes to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

With regard to projects the Government determines to fund as a result of the RPP process specified in the Agreement Scope, any MCDC Member recommendations for modifications, including justifications to support any changes to the funded projects, will be documented in a letter and submitted by the CMF to the AO with a copy to the Government Agreements Officer Representative designated for the particular project. The AO shall be responsible for review of proposed changes and for all modifications to the terms and conditions of the project awards. The CMF shall modify the Project Agreement(s) in the event of any such modifications or changes to the project.

For minor or administrative Agreement modifications (e.g., changes in the paying office or appropriation data, changes to Government representatives identified in the Agreement, etc.) the AO will issue a written Agreement

modification; no signature is required by the MCDC. The Government and the CMF as agent of the MCDC shall approve in writing all other Agreement modifications.

Management of Projects

- (1) Performance of the work on each project is subject to the technical direction of the AOR designated in the Project Agreement. For the purposes of this clause, technical direction includes the following:
 - Direction to the PAH, which shifts work emphasis between work areas or tasks, requires pursuit of certain lines of inquiry, fills in details or otherwise serves to accomplish the objectives described in the statement of work;
 - b. Guidelines to the PAH that assist in the interpretation of drawings, specifications or technical portions of work description.
 - c. Review and, where required by the Project Agreement, approval of technical reports, drawings, specifications, or technical information to be delivered by the PAH under the Project Agreement.

The AOR shall monitor the PAH's performance with respect to compliance with the technical requirements of the Project Agreement.

- (2) Technical direction must be within the general scope of work stated in the Project Agreement. Technical direction may not be used to
 - a. Assign additional work under the Project Agreement;
 - b. Increase or decrease the estimated Project Agreement cost, fee (if any), or the time required for the project performance;
 - c. Change any of the terms, conditions or specifications of the Project Agreement; or
 - d. Accept non-conforming work.

As such, no verbal or written request, notice, authorization, direction or order received by the PAH shall be binding upon the MCDC, CMF or Government, or serve as the basis for a change in the Project Agreement cost or any other provision of the Project Agreement, unless issued (or confirmed) in writing by the MCDC CMF Contractual Representative designated in the Project Agreement.

(3) The PAH shall immediately notify the MCDC CMF Contractual Representative whenever a written change notification has been received from anyone other than the MCDC CMF Contractual Representative, which would affect any of the terms, conditions, cost, schedules, etc. of the Project Agreement, and the PAH is to perform no work or make any changes in response to any such notification or make any claim on the MCDC through its CMF or Government, unless the MCDC CMF Contractual Representative directs the PAH, in writing, to implement such change notification.

ARTICLE IV: AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, approvals permitted or required to be made by the ACC-NJ may be made only by the ACC-NJ Agreements Officer. Administrative and contractual matters under this Agreement shall be referred to the following representatives of the parties:

Army Contracting Command – New Jersey (ACC-NJ):

(6)
 Agreements Officer
 CCNJ-ET, Bldg. 9
 (6)

Medical CBRN Defense Consortium (MCDC):

W15QKN-16-9-1002 (martins201958) Page 19 of 55

Executive Committee Chair

Consortium Management Firm (CMF), Advanced Technology International (ATI):

(b) (6)

Sr. Vice President, Contracts and Procurement 315 Sigma Drive Summerville, SC 29486 (b) (6)

Technical Matters under this Agreement shall be referred to the following representatives:

Program Management (PM) Office:

Agreements Officer's Representative JPEO-CBRND-CMO (b) (6)

Each party may change its representatives named in this Article by written notification to the other parties.

Defense Contract Management Agency (DCMA), Administrative Agreements Officer (AAO):

DCMA Atlanta

Agreements Administrative Office Duties

The AAO is hereby delegated the responsibilities to represent the Government as Agreement Administrator in the following areas:

(a) Review and approve/disapprove CMF's requests for adjustable milestone payments, as frequently as necessary.

(b) Monitor payments.

(c) Track total expenditures under this agreement.

(d) Assign and perform supporting Agreement administration.

(e) Monitoring cost share.

(f) Monitor the CMF's financial condition and advise the Agreements Officer when it jeopardizes Agreement performance.

(g) Process and execute novation and change of name agreements.

(h) Perform preaward surveys on prospective PAH.

(i) Ensure CMF's compliance with Agreement safety requirements.

(j) Duty-free entry assistance.

(k) Facilitate Terminations.

(1) Agreement administrative closeout.

(m) Request and monitor incurred cost/billing rate audits.

Cognizant Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) Office:

DCAA: Carolina Branch Office 5420 Millstream Road McLeansville, NC 27301-9527

Cognizant Defense Finance and Accounting Service (DFAS) Office:

DFAS – Columbus Center DFAS-CO/South Entitlement Operations PO Box 182317 Columbus, OH 43218-2317

Agreements Officer's Representative (AOR): Individual AORs will be designated by the Government on a per project basis.

ARTICLE V: OBLIGATION AND PAYMENT

A. Obligation: Except as specified in Article VII: Disputes, the Government's liability to make payments to the MCDC is limited only to those funds obligated under this Agreement. ACC-NJ may incrementally fund this Agreement. If modification becomes necessary in performance of projects, pursuant to Article V of this Agreement, the AO and the MCDC shall establish and execute a revised Schedule of Payable Milestones consistent with the current Project Agreement.

B. Project Payments: The detailed instructions for project payments will be included in the Technical Direction Letter to be issued by the Government on a project by project basis.

C. Payments: In addition to any other financial reports provided or required, the CMF shall notify the ACC-NJ AO immediately if any contribution from the MCDC is not made as required.

D. Accounting System Requirements: Prior to the submission of invoices, the CMF shall have and maintain an established accounting system which complies with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the requirements of this Agreement. The CMF shall ensure that appropriate arrangements have been made for receiving, distributing and accounting for Federal funds under this Agreement. Consistent with this stipulation, an acceptable accounting system will be one in which all cash receipts and disbursements are controlled and documented properly.

E. CMF Invoice: The MCDC through its CMF shall provide the Government a request for advance payment, which will include: the applicable negotiated payable milestones for each project for the projected period, applicable CMF management and administrative costs in accordance with this article, and liquidations based on actual costs incurred. The applicable MCDC Administration percentage will be billed in the next period following the receipt of the funding, and will be liquidated as frequently as necessary during the period of performance of the Agreement. If the funding obligated on a modification by the Government is less than \$5 million, then the CMF shall submit an advance request for the entire amount obligated. The MCDC through its CMF shall submit a copy of the request for advance payment to the AOR or designee for approval. After approval by the AOR or designee is obtained, the CMF, on behalf of the MCDC, shall provide a copy of the approved request for processing to the designated AAO for payment approval via the Wide Area Work Flow (WAWF) system, according to the guidelines set forth in DFARS Subpart 232.70 and DFARS 252.232-7003 JUN 2012 Electronic Submission of Payment Requests and Receiving Reports. Payments will be made by Defense Finance and Accounting Service, DFAS - Columbus Center South, DFAS-CO/South entitlement Operations. Payment approval for the final effort will be made after reconciliation of Government funding with any MCDC contributions.

(1) Project Payable Milestones: The CMF shall segregate and track all individual project costs separately and shall document the accomplishments of each Payable Milestone under each OTA project. A Payable Milestones report shall be detailed on a project basis and submitted with each request to the AOR or

designee for approval.

(2) Administrative/ Management Costs. A CPFF contractual agreement is to be used to account for the administrative and managerial costs of the CMF. The direct costs, indirect costs, and associated fixed fee will be charged as a percentage of the OTA project cost in an amount to be agreed upon each period for the responsibilities detailed in this Agreement. The MCDC Administration percentage will be adjusted 24 months after award and annually thereafter, to reflect projected expenses and project costs for the forthcoming year as well as adjustments for the prior year annual costs and actual allocation base. For example the FY17 MCDC Project Administration percentage will be adjusted to account for any over / under recovery of FY actual costs and allocation base (projects) experienced in FY16. See Attachment 5.

The Process will be adhered to by the CMF is as follows:

- a. The MCDC Administration percentage charged will be agreed upon by the Government and the CMF at the beginning of each Fiscal Year or at such point agreed to by the parties. The appropriate percentage will be applied to all contractual actions placed under this Agreement.
- b. The CMF will be reimbursed by the Government for actual costs incurred plus the applicable fixed fee in the execution of its responsibilities as outlined in this Agreement based on the CMF's disclosed and approved practices.
- c. At the end of each Fiscal Year, based on provisional indirect rates for the months of July, August and September of the current CMF's Fiscal Year and the final indirect rates through June 30 of the previous CMF's FY, the CMF will:
 - Submit actual costs inclusive of CMF direct labor by labor category, subcontractor costs, other direct costs, and indirect costs for the prior FY in the performance of its duties under this Agreement.
 - This detailed impact analysis will compare the amounts previously agreed to by the CMF and the Government for the prior FY actual work performed in accordance with this Agreement. Supporting documentation will be provided as requested by the Government (i.e. excerpts from general ledger to substantiate direct costs).
 - Any variations between actual cost incurred by the CMF and amounts previously funded by the Government will be carried forward and included in the MCDC Administration percentage that will be charged for funding received in the following Fiscal Year.

(3) Other Costs: The Government may issue a Technical Direction Letter to MCDC through its CMF to direct fund MCDC activities that are not covered under administrative/management costs described above.

F. Electronic Fund Transfer: The CMF must initiate enrollment of the CMF in EFT by contacting the paying office designated in the Agreement and requesting form SF 3881, Automated Clearing House (ACH) Vendor/Miscellaneous Payment Enrollment Plan. This form must be completed by the CMF, and the CMF's financial institution, and returned to the paying office. The paying office will complete the process and notify the CMF that EFT enrollment is complete. All payments under this agreement will be held until the CMF provides the required EFT enrollment information. The CAGE Code and DUNS number for the CMF, ATI, as CMF of the MCDC are as follows: CAGE Code:1G3V8; DUNS number: 025172953. Registration in CCR is mandatory.

G. Interest Earned: Government funds shall be maintained in an interest-bearing account prior to disbursement to MCDC Members. This account shall not be in U.S. Treasury Notes. Any interest earned shall be remitted annually to the ACC-NJ AO, or designee. Interest payments shall be made payable to the U.S. Treasury. Interest amounts less than \$250.00 per year may be retained by the CMF for administrative expenses.

H. Advance Payments: On a per project basis, advance payments may be approved by the AO. If the AO has approved advance payments, there will be a requirement to establish a separate interest bearing account. If advance payments are authorized, the agreement should require the CMF to have the particular Project Agreement Holder

(PAH) set up and maintain funds in a separate interest bearing account unless one of the following applies:

- (1) The PAH receives less than \$120,000 in Federal awards per year;
- The best reasonably available interest bearing account would not expect to earn interest in excess of \$250 per year on such cash advances;
- (3) The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high that it would not be feasible within the expected cash resources for the project; or
- (4) The advance payments are made one time to reduce financing costs for large up-front expenditures and the fund will not remain in the PAH's account for any significant period of time.

Where a separate interest bearing account is set up, any interest earned should be remitted annually to the ACC-NJ AO, or designee. Interest payments shall be made payable to the U.S. Treasury.

I. Limitation of Funds: Except as set forth in Article VII, the Government's financial liability will not exceed the amount obligated for projects and available for payment.

J. Financial Records and Reports: The CMF on behalf of the MCDC shall maintain adequate records to account for Federal funds received under this Agreement and shall maintain adequate records to account for MCDC Project Agreement funding provided under this Agreement, should cost sharing procedures be implemented for funding a particular project. The CMF and MCDC relevant financial records are subject to examination or audit on behalf of the ACC-NJ by the Government for a period not to exceed five (5) years after expiration of the term of the Agreement. The CMF on behalf of the MCDC shall ensure that, for each project, the PAH's relevant financial records are available and subject to examination or audit on behalf of the ACC-NJ for a period not to exceed five (5) years after final payment of the PAH's project. The AO or designee shall have direct access to sufficient records and information of the CMF, MCDC and PAHs to ensure full accountability for all funding under this Agreement. Such audit, examination or access shall be performed during business hours on business days upon prior written notice and shall be subject to the security requirements of the audited party. Any audit required during the course of the program may be conducted by the Government using Government auditors or, at the requesting PAH.

K. Receipt of Payment: In accordance with ARTICLE IV: AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION, the CMF will receive funds from the Government for the MCDC and deposit such funds in a segregated interest bearing account on behalf of the MCDC.

ARTICLE VI: NONTRADITIONAL DEFENSE/COST SHARING

In accordance with provisions of 10 USC 2371b, Section 815 of the 2016 National Defense Authorization Act, P.L. 114-92, which provides the Department of Defense (DoD) authority to enter into transactions *other than* contracts, grants, or cooperative agreements, the Department of Defense (DoD) has the authority to make awards that are directly relevant to enhancing the mission effectiveness of military personnel and the supporting platforms, systems, components, or materials proposed to be acquired or developed by the Department of Defense, or the improvement of platforms, systems, components, or materials in use by the armed forces. Section 815 revised the definition for the term 'nontraditional defense contractor' as defined in Article I.B., Definitions.

Each MCDC Member Organization must meet the definition of a Nontraditional Defense Contractor or have at least one Nontraditional Defense Contractor participating to a significant extent in the performance of an awarded Project Agreement. Examples of what might be considered a significant extent or significant contribution include, but may not be limited to supplying new key technologies or products, accomplishing a significant amount of the effort, or in some other way causing a material reduction in the cost or schedule or increase in the performance. If significant Nontraditional Defense Contractor participation cannot be fulfilled, the Member Organization must provide at least one third cost share of the value of the Project Agreement awarded to the Member Organization. Proposals that fail to comply with this requirement will not be awarded under the OTA.

Cost Sharing is not required under this Other Transaction Agreement for projects that contain significant nontraditional defense contractor participation. Where both Parties agree, cost sharing may be considered on a per project basis under terms and conditions to be agreed to by the Parties and in accordance with the "Other Transactions" (OT) Guide For Prototype Projects dated January 2001. For traditional Government contractors without a significant nontraditional defense contractor teaming partner, a one third cost share of the project costs is required as described in the "Other Transaction" (OT) Guide For Prototype Projects dated January 2001. For traditional Government contractors with significant nontraditional defense contractor participation, cost sharing is not required for Projects under this OTA.

Throughout the period of performance of any Project Agreement, the Government AO and AOR will actively monitor Nontraditional Defense Contractor participation and/or cost sharing to ensure compliance with this provision in accordance with implementation guidance from HQDA and/or OSD. The PAH will be given the opportunity to become compliant with the guidance should they be found non-compliant. Failure to comply may result in termination.

ARTICLE VII: DISPUTES

A. General

The Parties shall communicate with one another in good faith and in a timely and cooperative manner when raising issues under this Article.

B. Dispute Resolution Procedures

Any disagreement, claim or dispute between the ACC-NJ and the MCDC concerning questions of fact or law arising from or in connection with this Agreement and whether or not involving an alleged breach of this Agreement, may be raised only under this Article.

Whenever disputes, disagreements, or misunderstandings arise, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the issue(s) involved by discussion and mutual agreement as soon as practicable. In no event shall a dispute, disagreement or misunderstanding which arose more than three (3) months prior to the notification made under this article constitute the basis for relief under this article unless the ACC-NJ, Center Director for Emerging Technologies, in the interest of justice, waives this requirement.

Failing resolution by mutual agreement, the aggrieved Party shall document the dispute, disagreement, or misunderstanding by notifying the other Party (through the respective AO or CMF, as the case may be) in writing documenting the relevant facts, identifying unresolved issues, specifying the clarification or remedy sought, and documenting the rationale as to why the clarification/remedy is appropriate. Within ten (10) working days after providing notice to the other Party, the aggrieved Party may, in writing, request a decision by the ACC-NJ, Center Director for Emerging Technologies. The other Party shall submit a written position on the matter(s) in dispute within thirty (30) calendar days after being notified that a decision has been requested. The ACC-NJ, Center Director for Emerging Technologies, will conduct a review of the matter(s) in dispute and render a decision in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of such position. Any such decision is final and binding, unless a Party shall, within thirty (30) calendar days request further review as provided by this article.

If requested within thirty (30) calendar days of the ACC-NJ, Center Director for Emerging Technologies' decision, further review will be conducted by the Chair of the MCDC Executive Committee and the ACC-NJ Associate Director. In the event of a decision, or in absence of a decision within sixty (60) calendar days of referral to the Chair of the MCDC Executive Committee and the ACC-NJ, Associate Director (or such other period as agreed to by the parties), either party may pursue any right or remedy provided by law, including but not limited to the right to

seek extraordinary relief under Public Law 85-804. Alternatively, the parties may agree to explore and establish an Alternate Disputes Resolution procedure to resolve this dispute.

C. Limitation of Liability and Damages

In no event shall the liability of the MCDC, or the MCDC PAH, MCDC member entity or any other entity performing research activities under a Project Agreement issued by the MCDC, exceed the funding such entity has received for their performance of the specific OTA project under which the dispute arises.

No Party shall be liable to any other Party for consequential, punitive, special and incidental damages or other indirect damages, whether arising in contract (including warranty), tort (whether or not arising from the negligence of a Party) or otherwise, except to the extent such damages are caused by a Party's willful misconduct; Notwithstanding the foregoing, claims for contribution toward third-party injury, damage, or loss are not limited, waived, released, or disclaimed.

ARTICLE VIII: CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

A. Definitions

- "Disclosing Party" means MCDC, on its own behalf or on behalf of the CMF, MCDC PAHs or MCDC member entities, or the Government who discloses Confidential Information as contemplated by the subsequent Paragraphs.
- (2) "Receiving Party" means MCDC, on its own behalf or on behalf of the CMF, MCDC PAHs or MCDC member entities, or the Government who receives Confidential Information disclosed by a Disclosing Party.
- (3) "Confidential Information" means information and materials of a Disclosing Party which are designated as confidential or as a Trade Secret in writing by such Disclosing Party, whether by letter or by use of an appropriate stamp or legend, prior to or at the same time any such information or materials are disclosed by such Disclosing Party to the Receiving Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, materials and other information which are orally, visually, or electronically disclosed by a Disclosing Party, or are disclosed in writing without an appropriate letter, stamp, or legend, shall constitute Confidential Information or a Trade Secret if such Disclosing Party, within thirty (30) calendar days after such disclosure, delivers to the Receiving Party a written document or documents describing the material or information and indicating that it is confidential or a Trade Secret, provided that any disclosure of information by the Receiving Party prior to receipt of such notice shall not constitute a breach by the Receiving Party of its obligations under this Paragraph. "Confidential Information" includes any information and materials considered a Trade Secret by the MCDC on its own behalf or on behalf of the CMF, MCDC member entities or PAHs. "Trade Secret" means all forms and types of financial, business, scientific, technical, economic, or engineering or otherwise proprietary information, including, but not limited to, patterns, plans, compilations, program devices, formulas, designs, prototypes, methods, techniques, processes, procedures, programs, or codes, whether tangible or intangible, and whether or how stored, compiled, or memorialized physically, electronically, graphically, photographically, or in writing if -
 - (a) The owner thereof has taken reasonable measures to keep such information secret; and
 - (b) The information derives independent economic value, actual or potential, from not being generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable through proper means by, the public.

B. Exchange of Information: Neither the Government nor MCDC on behalf of the MCDC member entities or PAHs nor the CMF shall be obligated to transfer Confidential Information independently developed by the Government or the MCDC member entities or PAHs or the CMF absent an express written agreement between the Parties involved in the exchange providing the terms and conditions for such disclosure.

C. Authorized Disclosure: The Receiving Party agrees, to the extent permitted by law, that Confidential Information shall remain the property of the Disclosing Party (no one shall disclose unless they have the right to do so), and that, unless otherwise agreed to by the Disclosing Party, Confidential Information shall not be disclosed, divulged, or otherwise communicated by it to third parties or used by it for any purposes other than in connection with specified project efforts and the licenses granted in Article X, Patent Rights, and Article XI, Data Rights, provided that the duty to protect such "Confidential Information" and "Trade Secrets" shall not extend to materials or information that:

(a) Are received or become available without restriction to the Receiving Party under a proper, separate agreement,

(b) Are not identified with a suitable notice or legend per Article VIII entitled "Confidential Information" herein,

(c) Are lawfully in possession of the Receiving Party without such restriction to the Receiving Party at the time of disclosure thereof as demonstrated by prior written records,

(d) Are or later become part of the public domain through no fault of the Receiving Party,

(e) Are received by the Receiving Party from a third party having no obligation of confidentiality to the Disclosing Party that made the disclosure,

(f) Are developed independently by the Receiving Party without use of Confidential Information as evidenced by written records,

(g) Are required by law or regulation to be disclosed; provided, however, that the Receiving Party has provided written notice to the Disclosing Party promptly so as to enable such Disclosing Party to seek a protective order or otherwise prevent disclosure of such information.

D. Return of Proprietary Information: Upon the request of the Disclosing Party, the Receiving Party shall promptly return all copies and other tangible manifestations of the Confidential Information disclosed. As used in this section, tangible manifestations include human readable media as well as magnetic and digital storage media.

E. Term: The obligations of the Receiving Party under this Article shall continue for a period of seven (7) years from conveyance of the Confidential Information.

F. The Government and the MCDC shall flow down the requirements of this Article VIII to their respective personnel, member entities, agents, PAHs (including employees) at all levels, receiving such Confidential Information under this OTA.

ARTICLE IX: PUBLICATION AND ACADEMIC RIGHTS

A. Use of Information.

Subject to the provisions of Article VIII, Confidential Information, Article IX, Publication and Academic Rights, and Article XI Data Rights, the MCDC designated PAHs and the Government shall have the right to publish or otherwise disclose information and/or data developed by the Government and/or the respective MCDC PAHs under the Research Project. The MCDC through its designated PAHs and the Government (and its employees) shall include an appropriate acknowledgement of the sponsorship of the Research Projects by the Government and the MCDC PAHs in such publication or disclosure. The Parties shall have only the right to use, disclose, and exploit any such data and Confidential Information in accordance with the rights held by them pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, the Parties shall not be deemed authorized by this paragraph, alone, to disclose any

Confidential Information of the Government or the MCDC on behalf of other MCDC PAHs or MCDC member entities or the CMF.

B. Publication or Public Disclosure of Information

(a) Classified Research Projects.

If a release of Confidential Information or Trade Secrets is for a classified Research Project, the provisions of the DoD Security Agreement (DD Form 441) and the DoD Contract Security Classification Specification (DD Form 254) apply.

(b) Review or Approval of Technical Information for Public Release.

(1) At least 30 days prior to the scheduled release date MCDC on behalf of its PAHs shall submit to the AOR two copies of the information to be released.

The AOR is hereby designated as the approval authority for the AO for such releases.

(2) Where the MCDC has Academic Research Institutions performing fundamental research on campus as PAHs, the MCDC shall require such PAHs to provide papers and publications for provision to the AOR for review and comment 30 days prior to formal paper/publication submission. However, if that Academic Research Institution incorporates into its research results or publications artifacts produced by and provided to these institutions by the MCDC on behalf of other (non-educational institution) MCDC PAHs (or has authors listed on the paper who are not employees or students of the Academic Research Institution) then the procedures in PARAGRAPH IX.A. ABOVE must be followed.

(3) Parties to this Agreement are responsible for assuring that an acknowledgment of government support will appear in any publication of any material based on or developed under this OTA, using the following acknowledgement terms:

"Effort sponsored by the U.S. Government under Other Transaction number W15QKN-16-9-1002 between the MCDC, and the Government. The US Government is authorized to reproduce and distribute reprints for Governmental purposes notwithstanding any copyright notation thereon."

(4) Parties to this Agreement are also responsible for assuring that every publication of material based on or developed under this project contains the following disclaimer:

"The views and conclusions contained herein are those of the authors and should not be interpreted as necessarily representing the official policies or endorsements, either expressed or implied, of the U.S. Government.

The MCDC shall flowdown these requirements to its PAHs, at all tiers.

(c) Notices. To avoid disclosure of Confidential Information or Trade Secrets belonging to an MCDC member entity or PAH and/or the Government and the loss of patent rights as a result of premature public disclosure of patentable information, the MCDC agrees to require that any PAH that is proposing to publish or disclose such information provide advance notice to the MCDC, through its CMF, and identify such other parties as may have an interest in such Confidential Information. The MCDC, through its CMF, shall notify such parties at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to any PAH's submission for publication or disclosure, together with any and all materials intended for publication or disclosure relating to technical reports, data, or information developed by the parties during the term of and pursuant to this Agreement. The Government must notify the MCDC, through its CMF, of any objection to disclosure within this thirty (30) day period, or else the PAH, shall be deemed authorized to make such disclosure.

- (d) Filing of Patent Applications. During the course of any such thirty (30) calendar day period, the MCDC, on behalf of any MCDC member entities to whom such Confidential Information belong, and/or the Government shall provide notice to the AO as to whether it desires that a patent application be filed on any invention disclosed in such materials. In the event that a MCDC member entity to whom such Confidential Information belong and/or the Government desires that such a patent be filed, the MCDC (and through it, the MCDC PAH) or the Government proposing to publish or disclose such materials agrees to withhold publication and disclosure of such materials until the occurrence of the first of the following:
 - (1) Filing of a patent application covering such invention, or
 - (2) Written agreement, from the AO and the MCDC (on behalf of the MCDC member entity to whom such Confidential Information belong) that no patentable invention is disclosed in such materials.
 - (3) Further, during the course of any such 90 calendar day period, the MCDC shall notify the AO and the Government if there is any MCDC member entity that believes any of its Confidential Information have been included in the proposed publication or disclosure and shall identify the specific Confidential Information or Trade Secrets that need to be removed from such proposed publication. The Government and the MCDC on behalf of the PAH proposing the publication or disclosure of such materials agrees to remove from the proposed publication or disclosure all such Confidential Information so identified by the MCDC.

ARTICLE X: PATENT RIGHTS

A. Definitions

"Invention" means any invention or discovery which is or may be patentable or otherwise protectable under Title 35 of the United States Code.

"Made" when used in relation to any invention means the conception or first actual reduction to practice of such invention.

"Practical application" means to manufacture, in the case of a composition of product; to practice, in the case of a process or method, or to operate, in the case of a machine or system; and in each case, under such conditions as to establish that the invention is capable of being utilized and that its benefits are, to the extent permitted by law or Government regulations, available to the public on reasonable terms.

"Subject invention" means any invention of the MCDC's PAH conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the performance of work under this Agreement.

"Background Invention" means any invention, or improvement to any invention, other than a Subject Invention, made by the MCDC's member entity or PAH (or their subcontractors of any tier) that was conceived, designed, developed, produced, and/or actually reduced to practice prior to performance of the Agreement or outside the scope of work performed under this Agreement.

B. Allocation of Principal Rights

The MCDC's PAH shall retain the entire right, title, and interest throughout the world to each subject invention consistent with the provisions of this Article, Executive Order 12591 and 35 U.S.C § 202. In the event that a PAH consists of more than one entity or person, those entities or persons may allocate such right, title interest between themselves or others as they may agree in writing With respect to any subject invention in which the PAH retains title, the Government shall have a non-exclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable, paid-up license to practice or have practiced on behalf of the United States the subject invention throughout the world. The PAH may elect to provide full or partial rights that it has retained to other parties. The Government shall have the right to use any products or

processes used for test and evaluation (including materials for testing or assays) in any other project pursued on behalf of the U.S. Government.

C. Invention Disclosure, Election of Title, and Filing of Patent Application

(1) The MCDC CMF, on behalf of the PAH shall disclose each subject invention to the Government within four (4) months after the inventor discloses it in writing to his company personnel responsible for patent matters. The disclosure to the Government shall be in the form of a written report and shall identify the Agreement under which the invention was made and the identity of the inventor(s). It shall be sufficiently complete in technical detail to convey a clear understanding to the extent known at the time of the disclosure, of the nature, purpose, operation, and the physical, chemical, biological or electrical characteristics of the invention. The disclosure shall also identify any publication, sale, or public use of the invention and whether a manuscript describing the invention has been submitted for publication and, if so, whether it has been accepted for publication at the time of disclosure.

(2) If the PAH determines that it does not intend to retain title to any such invention, the MCDC CMF shall notify the AO, in writing, within nine (9) months of disclosure to the ACC-NJ. However, in any case where publication, sale or public use has initiated the one (1) year statutory period wherein valid patent protection can still be obtained in the United States, the period for such notice may be shortened by the ACC-NJ to a date that is no more than six (6) months prior to the end of the project.

(3) The MCDC, through its CMF, shall require its PAH to file its initial patent application on a subject invention to which it elects to retain title within one (1) year after election of title or, if earlier, prior to the end of the statutory period wherein valid patent protection can be obtained in the United States after a publication, or sale, or public use. The MCDC PAH may elect to file patent applications in additional countries (including the European Patent Office and the Patent Cooperation Treaty) within either ten (10) months of the corresponding initial patent application or six (6) months from the date permission is granted by the Commissioner of Patents and Trademarks to file foreign patent applications, where such filing has been prohibited by a Secrecy Order.

(4) After considering the position of the MCDC on behalf of the PAH, a request for extension of the time for disclosure election, and filing under this Article IX, paragraph C, may be approved by ACC-NJ, which ACC-NJ approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

D. Conditions When the Government May Obtain Title

Upon the AO's written request to the CMF, the MCDC shall obtain from the PAH and convey to the Government title to any subject invention under any of the following conditions:

(1) If the PAH fails to disclose or elects not to retain title to the subject invention within the times specified in paragraph C of this Article X, Patent Rights; provided, that the Government may only request title within sixty (60) days after learning of the failure of the PAH to disclose or elect within the specified times.

(2) In those countries in which the PAH fails to file patent applications within the times specified in paragraph C of this Article X, Patent Rights; provided, that if the PAH has filed a patent application in a country after times specified in paragraph C of this Article X, Patent Rights, but prior to its receipt of the written request by the Government through the MCDC CMF, the PAH shall continue to retain title in that country; or

(3) In any country in which the PAH decides not to continue the prosecution of any application for, to pay the maintenance fees on, or defend in reexamination or opposition proceedings on, a patent on a subject invention.

E. Minimum Rights to the MCDC PAH and Protection of the MCDC PAH's Right to File

The Parties agree that:

(1) The MCDC's PAH shall retain a non-exclusive, royalty-free license throughout the world in each subject invention to which the Government obtains title, except if the MCDC on behalf of the PAH fails to disclose the invention within the times specified in paragraph C of this Article X, Patent Rights. PAH's license extends to the domestic (including Canada) subsidiaries and affiliates, if any, of the PAH within the corporate structure of which the PAH is a party and includes the right to grant licenses of the same scope to the extent that MCDC PAH was legally obligated to do so at the time the project under the Agreement was funded. The license is transferable only with the approval of the Government, except when transferred to the successor of that part of the business to which the invention pertains. Government approval for license transfer shall not be unreasonably withheld.

(2) The MCDC's PAH domestic license may be revoked or modified by the Government to the extent necessary to achieve expeditious practical application of the subject invention pursuant to an application for an exclusive license submitted consistent with appropriate provisions at 37 CFR Part 404. This license shall not be revoked in that field of use or the geographical areas in which the PAH has achieved practical application and continues to make the benefits of the invention reasonably accessible to the public. The license in any foreign country may be revoked or modified at the discretion of the Government to the extent the PAH, its licensees, or the subsidiaries or affiliates have failed to achieve practical application in that foreign country.

(3) Before revocation or modification of the license, the Government shall furnish the MCDC, and the MCDC shall forward to the PAH, a written notice of the Government's intention to revoke or modify the license, and the MCDC on behalf of the PAH shall be allowed thirty (30) calendar days (or such other time as may be authorized for good cause shown) after the notice to show cause why the license should not be revoked or modified.

F. Action to Protect the Government's Interest

(1) The MCDC agrees to require inventing PAHs to execute or have executed and promptly deliver to the Government all instruments necessary to (i) establish or confirm the rights the Government has throughout the world in those subject inventions to which the PAH elects to retain title, and (ii) convey title to the Government when requested under paragraph D of this Article X, Patent Rights, and to enable the Government to obtain patent protection throughout the world in that subject invention.

(2) The MCDC agrees to require, by written agreement, that employees of the PAH working on program projects, other than clerical and non-technical employees, agree to disclose promptly in writing, to personnel identified as responsible for the administration of patent matters and in a format acceptable to the MCDC, each subject invention made under this Agreement in order that the MCDC on behalf of the PAH can comply with disclosure provisions of paragraph C of the Article X, Patent Rights, and to execute all papers necessary to file the patent applications on the subject invention and to establish the Government's rights in the subject invention. The MCDC shall instruct their PAHs and PAH employees, though employee agreements or other suitable educational programs, on the importance of reporting inventions in sufficient time to permit the filing of patent applications prior to U.S. or foreign statutory bars.

(3) The MCDC shall notify the Government of any PAH's decision not to continue the prosecution of a patent application, pay maintenance fees, or defend in a reexamination or opposition proceedings on a patent, in any country, not less than 30 days before the expiration of the response period required by the relevant patent office.

(4) The MCDC's PAH shall include, within the specification of any United States patent application and any patent issuing thereon covering a subject invention, the following statement: "This invention was made with U.S. Government support under Agreement No. W15QKN-16-9-1002 awarded by the ACC-NJ to the MCDC. The Government has certain rights in the invention."

G. Lower Tier Agreements

The MCDC shall include the Article X, Patent Rights, suitably modified to identify the parties, in all Project Agreements or lower tier agreements, regardless of tier, for experimental, development, or research work.

H. Reporting on Utilization of Subject Inventions

The PAH shall submit, on request during the term of the Project Agreement, periodic reports no more frequently than annually on the utilization of a subject invention or on efforts at obtaining such utilization that are being made by the PAH or its licensees or assignees. Such reports shall include information regarding the status of development date of first commercial sale or use, gross royalties received by the PAH, and such other data and information as the agency may reasonably specify. The PAH also agrees to provide additional reports as may be requested by the Government in connection with any march-in proceedings undertaken by the Government in accordance with paragraph J of this Article X, Patent Rights. Consistent with 35 U.S.C. § 205, the Government agrees it shall not disclose such information to persons outside the Government without permission of the MCDC on behalf of the PAHs.

I. Preference for American Industry

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Article X, Patent Rights, the PAH not to grant to any person the exclusive right to use or sell any subject invention in the United States or Canada unless such person agrees that any product embodying the Subject Invention or produced through the use of the Subject Invention shall be manufactured substantially in the United States or Canada. However, in individual cases, the requirements for such an agreement may be waived by the Government upon a showing by the PAH that reasonable but unsuccessful efforts have been made to grant licenses on similar terms to potential licensees that would be likely to manufacture substantially in the United States or that, under the circumstances, domestic manufacture is not commercially feasible.

J. March-in Rights

The MCDC agrees that, with respect to any subject invention in which its MCDC's PAH has retained title, the Government has the right to require the MCDC to obtain and grant a non-exclusive license to a responsible applicant or applicants, upon terms that are reasonable under the circumstances, and if the MCDC refuses such a request, the Government has the right to grant such a licensee itself if the Government determines that:

(1) Such action is necessary because the MCDC's PAH or assignee has not taken effective steps, consistent with the intent of this Agreement, to achieve practical application of the subject invention;

(2) Such action is necessary to alleviate health or safety needs which are not reasonably satisfied by the MCDC's PAH, assignee, or their licensees;

(3) Such action is necessary to meet requirements for public use and such requirements are not reasonably satisfied by the MCDC's PAH, assignee, or licensees; or

(4) Such action is necessary because the Agreement required by paragraph (I) of this Article X, Patent Rights, has not been obtained or waived or because a licensee who has the exclusive right to use or sell any subject invention in the United States is in the breach of such Agreement.

K. Opportunity to Cure

Certain provisions of this Article X, Patent Rights, provide that the Government may gain title or license to a subject invention by reason of the MCDC's action, or failure to act, within the times required by this Article X, Patent Rights. Prior to claiming such rights (including any rights under Article X, Paragraph J. March-In Rights), the Government will give written notice to MCDC of the Government's intent, and afford the MCDC on behalf of the PAH a reasonable time to cure such action or failure to act. The length of the cure period will depend on the

circumstances, but in no event will be more than 60 days. The MCDC on behalf of the PAH may also use the cure period to show good cause why the claiming of such title or right would be inconsistent with the intent of this Agreement in light of the appropriate timing for introduction of the technology in question, the relative funding and participation of the parties in the development, and other factors.

L. Background Information

In no event shall the provisions set forth in this Article X apply to any Background Inventions or Patents. The MCDC's member entities, PAHs or their subcontractors shall retain the entire right, title, and interest throughout the world to each such Inventions and Patents that each party has brought through MCDC to the project issued under this Agreement and the Government shall not have any rights under this Agreement. Projects to be funded under this Agreement will list Background Inventions and Patents anticipated to be used on the project; such listing may be amended by the parties as appropriate to reflect changes in such plans.

M. Survival Rights

Provisions of this Article X shall survive termination of this Agreement under Article II.

Notwithstanding the terms of this in this Article, differing rights in patents may be negotiated among the Parties to each individual project on a case-by-case basis.

ARTICLE XI: DATA RIGHTS

This is a Data Rights Clause specifically tailored for this OTA to address respective rights of the Government and MCDC on behalf of its actual or prospective MCDC PAHs to such Data as is owned, developed, to be developed or used by an actual or prospective MCDC member entity or PAH (1) as identified in a MCDC member entity(ies) proposal submitted to the Government through the CMF in response to a competitive Government OTA call for proposals, and (2) when such proposal is selected by the Government for funded performance and the Project Agreement is issued by the MCDC to that MCDC member entity for performance of such Government OTA project.

A. Definitions

(1) "Commercial Computer Software" as used in the Article is defined in DFARS 252-227-7014(a)(1) (Jun 1995).

(2) "Commercial Computer Software License" means the license terms under which commercial computer software and Data (as defined in this OTA) is sold or offered for sale, lease or license to the general public.

(3) "Computer Data Base" as used in this Agreement, means a collection of data recorded in a form capable of being processed by a computer. The term does not include computer software.

(4) "Computer program" as used in this Agreement means a set of instructions, rules, or routines in a form that is capable of causing a computer to perform a specific operation or series of operations.

(5) "Computer software" as used in this Agreement means computer programs, source code, source code listings, object code listings, design details, algorithms, processes, flow charts, formulae and related material that would enable the software to be reproduced, recreated or recompiled. Computer software does not include computer data bases or computer software documentation.

(6) "Computer software documentation" means owner's manuals, user's manuals, installation instructions, operating instructions, and other similar items, regardless of storage medium, that explain the capabilities of the computer software or provide instructions for using the software.

(7) "Data" as used in this Article of the Agreement, means computer software, computer software documentation, form, fit and function data, and technical data as defined in this Article.

(8) "Form, fit and function data" means technical data that describes the required overall physical, functional and performance characteristics (along with the qualification requirements, if applicable) of an item, component, or process to the extent necessary to permit identification of physically and functionally interchangeable items.

(9) "Government purpose rights" means the rights to use, modify, duplicate or disclose the "Data" licensed with such rights under this OTA within the Government for United States Government purposes only; and to release or disclose data outside the Government to any authorized persons pursuant to an executed non-disclosure agreement for such persons use, modification, or reproduction for United States Government purposes only. United States Government purposes include Foreign Military Sales purposes. Under this Agreement, the period of Government purpose rights shall be no less than ten (10) years and during such time the MCDC member entity or PAH developing or providing such Data to the Government with government purpose rights shall have the sole and exclusive right to use such Data for commercial purposes. In the event this Data is used to perform another project issued to that MCDC member entity or PAH under this OTA during this ten (10) year period, the period of government purpose rights shall be extended an additional ten (10) years starting with the date of completion of performance of the additional project.

(10) "Limited rights" as used in this Article is as defined in DFARS 252.227-7013(a)(13) (Nov 1995).

(11) "Restricted rights" as used in this Article is as defined in DFARS 252.227-7014(a)(14) (Jun 1995).

(12) "Specially Negotiated License Rights" are those rights to Data that have been specifically negotiated between the Government and the MCDC on behalf of the member entity or PAH whose proposal is selected by the Government under a call for proposals issued under the OTA.

(13) "Technical data" means recorded information, regardless of the form or method of the recording, of a scientific or technical nature (including computer software documentation). The term does not include computer software or data incidental to contract administration, such as financial and/or management information.

(14) "Unlimited rights" as used in this Article is as defined n DFARS 252.227-7013(a)(16).

B. Data Categories

(1) Category A is the Data developed and paid for totally by private funds, or the MCDC member entity's or PAH's (or its subcontractor's) IR&D funds and it is Data to which the MCDC member entity or PAH (or its subcontractor) retains all rights. Category A Data shall include, but not be limited to,

(a) Data as defined in this Article and any designs or other material provided by the MCDC member entity or PAH for a project under this Agreement which was not developed in the performance of work under that project, and for which the MCDC member entity or PAH retains all rights.

(b) Any initial Data or technical, marketing, or financial Data provided at the onset of the project by any of the MCDC member entities or PAHs. Such Data shall be marked "Category A" and any rights to be provided to the Government for such Data under a specific project shall be as identified in the proposal submitted to the Government and included into the Technical Direction Letter and CMF issued Project Agreements.

(2) Category B is any Data developed under this OTA with mixed funding, i.e. development was accomplished partially with costs charged to a MCDC member entity(ies) or PAHs indirect cost pools and/or costs not allocated to a MCDC member entity(ies) or PAHs Project Agreement under this OTA, and partially with Government funding under this OTA. Any Data developed outside of this OTA whether or not developed with any Government funding in whole or in part under a Government agreement, contract or subcontract shall have the rights negotiated under such prior agreement, contract or subcontract; the Government shall get no additional rights in such Data.

(3) Category C is any Data developed exclusively with Government funds under this OTA. Research and Development performed was not accomplished exclusively or partially at private expense. Under this category,

(a) the Government will have Government Purpose Rights in Data developed exclusively with Government funds under a project funded by the Government under this OTA that is:

(i) Data pertaining to an item, component, or process which has been or will be developed exclusively with Government funds;

(ii) Studies, analyses, test data, or similar data produced for this contract, when the study, analysis, test, or similar work was specified as an element of performance;

(iii) Data created in the performance of the OTA that does not require the development, manufacture, construction, or production of items, components, or processes;

(iv) Form, fit, and function data;

(v) Data necessary for installation, operation, maintenance, or training purposes (other than detailed manufacturing or process data);

(vi) Corrections or changes to technical data furnished to the Contractor by the Government;

The Government can only order such Data as is developed under the OTA project where the order request is made within one (1) year following OTA project completion. In the event the Government orders such Data, it shall pay MCDC the reasonable costs for all efforts to deliver such requested Data, including but not limited to costs of locating such Data, formatting, reproducing, shipping, and associated administrative costs.

(b) The Government shall have unlimited rights in Data

(i) Otherwise publicly available or that has been released or disclosed by MCDC's PAH without restrictions on further use, release or disclosure, other than a release or disclosure resulting from the sale, transfer, or other assignment of interest in the Data to another party or the sale or transfer of some or all of a business entity or its assets to another party;

(ii) Data in which the Government has obtained unlimited rights under another Government contract or as a result of negotiations; or

(iii) Data furnished to the Government, under this or any other Government contract or subcontract thereunder, with—

(1) Government Purpose Rights or limited rights and the restrictive condition(s) has/have expired; or

(2) Government purpose rights and the MCDC PAH's exclusive right to use such Data for commercial purposes under such contract or subcontract has expired.

(c) However, any Data developed outside of this OTA whether or not developed with any Government funding in whole or in part under a Government agreement, contract or subcontract shall have the rights negotiated under such prior agreement, contract or subcontract; the Government shall get no additional rights in such Data.

(d) Further, the Government's rights to Commercial Computer Software and Data licensed under a Commercial Computer Software License under this OTA, and the treatment of Data relating thereto, shall be as set forth in the Commercial Computer Software License.

(4) The parties to this Agreement understand and agree that the MCDC shall have its PAHs stamp all documents in accordance with this Article and that the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) and Trade Secrets Act (TSA) apply to Data.

C. Allocation of Principal Rights

(1) The Government shall have no rights to Category A Data.

(2) The Government shall have immediate Government Purpose Rights to Category B or C Data upon delivery or project or Agreement completion (whichever is earlier), except that

(a) where the PAH whose Data it is, is a small business as defined under the Small Business Innovation research Program (SBIR) under 15 U.S.C. 638, and such data was developed under a project designated by the Government in the RPP as an SBIR program project, such PAH automatically shall be entitled to a delay in the start of the Government Purpose Rights period for at least five (5) years from project completion, or such longer period as may be negotiated among the Government and MCDC on behalf of the PAH, and

(b) The MCDC, at the request of small business or an other than small business MCDC member entity or PAH, may request on such member entity's or PAH's behalf a delay of the start of Government Purpose Rights in Category B or C Data for a period not to exceed five (5) years from project or Agreement completion (whichever is earlier). Such requests will only be made in those cases where the MCDC has provided information from the affected actual or prospective PAH demonstrating the need for this additional restriction on Government use and shall be submitted to the ACC-NJ AO for approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. In the event of any dispute regarding approval of this request, the parties agree to treat this as a dispute and shall follow the provisions of Article VII, Disputes.

(c) for Article XI.B.3(c) Category C Data, the Government shall have only the rights established under prior agreements.

(d) for Article XI.B.3(d) Category C Data, the Government shall only have the rights set forth in the Commercial Computer Software Data license agreement.

(3) Data that will be delivered, furnished, or otherwise provided to the Government as specified in a specific project award funded under this Agreement, in which the Government has previously obtained rights, shall be delivered, furnished, or provided with the pre-existing rights, unless (a) the parties have agreed otherwise, or (b) any restrictions on the Government's rights to use, modify, reproduce, release, perform, display, or disclose the data have expired or no longer apply.

(4) Each proposal submitted by the MCDC member entities in response to a Government call for proposals under this OTA shall include a list of the Category A, B and C Data to be used or developed under the proposal if selected. Rights in such Data shall be as established under the terms of this Agreement, unless otherwise asserted in the proposal and agreed to by the Government. The AO will incorporate the list of Category A, B and C Data and the identified rights therefor in the award document.

Following issuance of a Technical Direction Letter and subsequent CMF issuance of the Project Agreement to the Government selected MCDC member entity (the PAH), the PAH shall update the list to identify any additional, previously unidentified, Data if such Data will be used or generated in the performance of the funded work. Rights in such Data shall be as established under the terms of this Agreement, unless otherwise asserted in a supplemental listing and agreed to by the Government.

D. Marking of Data

Except for Data delivered with unlimited rights, Data to be delivered under this Agreement subject to restrictions on use, duplication or disclosure shall be marked with the following legend:

Use, duplication, or disclosure is subject to the restrictions as stated in the Agreement between the U.S. Government and the MCDC, Agreement No. W15QKN-16-9-1002, Project Title and the MCDC Project Agreement with [insert name of company] No. ______.

It is not anticipated that any Category A Data will be delivered to the Government under this Agreement.

In the event commercial computer software and Data is licensed under a commercial computer software license under this OTA, a Special License rights marking legend shall be used as agreed to by the parties.

The Government shall have unlimited rights in all unmarked Data. In the event that a MCDC member entity or PAH learns of a release to the Government of its unmarked Data that should have contained a restricted legend, the MCDC on behalf of the member entity or PAH will have the opportunity to cure such omission going forward by providing written notice to the AO within three (3) months of the erroneous release.

E. Copyright

The PAHs reserve the right to protect by copyright original works developed under this Agreement. All such copyrights will be in the name of the individual PAH). The MCDC PAH(s) hereby grant to the U.S. Government a non-exclusive, non-transferable, royalty-free, fully paid-up license to reproduce, prepare derivative works, distribute copies to the public, and perform publicly and display publicly, for governmental purposes, any copyrighted materials developed under this agreement, and to authorize others to do so.

In the event Data is exchanged with a notice indicating that the Data is protected under copyright as a published, copyrighted work and it is also indicated on the Data that such Data existed prior to, or was produced outside of this Agreement, the Party receiving the Data and others acting on its behalf may reproduce, distribute, and prepare derivative works for the sole purpose of carrying out that Party's responsibilities under this Agreement with the written permission of the Copyright holder.

Copyrighted Data that existed or was produced outside of this Agreement and is unpublished - having only been provided under licensing agreement with restrictions on its use and disclosure - and is provided under this Agreement shall be marked as unpublished copyright in addition to the appropriate license rights legend restricting its use, and treated in accordance with such license rights legend markings restricting its use.

The MCDC PAHs are responsible for affixing appropriate markings indicating the rights of the Government on all Data delivered under this Agreement.

The Government agrees not to remove any copyright notices placed on Data and to include such notices on all reproductions of the Data.

F. Data First Produced by the Government:

As to Data first produced by the Government in carrying out the Government's responsibilities under this OTA and which Data would embody trade secrets or would comprise commercial or financial information that is privileged or confidential if obtained from the MCDC on behalf of any MCDC member entity or PAH, such Data will, to the extent permitted by law, be appropriately marked with a suitable notice or legend and maintained in confidence by the MCDC and any MCDC member entity or PAH to whom disclosed for three (3) years after the development of the information, with the express understanding that during the aforesaid period such Data may be disclosed and used by the MCDC or any MCDC member entity or PAH, including its respective employees or subcontractors of any tier, (under suitable protective conditions) by or on behalf of the Government for Government purposes only.

G. Prior Technology

(1) Government Prior Technology: In the event it is necessary for the Government to furnish the MCDC or any MCDC member entity or PAH, including their respective employees or their subcontractors of any tier, with Data which existed prior to, or was produced outside of this Agreement, and such Data is so identified with a suitable notice or legend, the Data will be maintained in confidence and disclosed and used only for the purpose of carrying out their responsibilities under this Agreement. Data protection will include proprietary markings and handling, and the signing of non-disclosure agreements by MCDC (their PAHs, PAH subcontractors of any tier and their respective employees) to whom such Data is provided for use under the OTA. Upon completion of activities under this Agreement, such Data will be disposed of as requested by the Government.

(2) MCDC and MCDC Member Entity Prior Technology: In the event it is necessary for the MCDC or any MCDC member entity or PAH to furnish the Government with Data which existed prior to, or was produced outside of this Agreement, and such Data embodies trade secrets or comprises commercial or financial information which is privileged or confidential, and such Data is so identified with a suitable notice or legend, the Data will be maintained in confidence and disclosed and used by the Government and such Government Contractors or contract employees that the Government may hire on a temporary or periodic basis only for the purpose of carrying out the Government's responsibilities under this Agreement. Data protection will include proprietary markings and handling, and the signing of nondisclosure agreements by such Government Contractors or contract employees. Neither the MCDC nor any MCDC member entity nor PAH shall be obligated to provide Data that existed prior to, or was developed outside of this Agreement to the Government. Upon completion of activities under this Agreement, such Data will be disposed of as requested by the MCDC on behalf of itself or member entities or PAHs.

(3) Oral and Visual Information: If information which the MCDC (including MCDC member entities, PAHs, their subcontractors of any tier and their respective employees) considers to embody trade secrets or to comprise commercial or financial information which is privileged or confidential is expressly disclosed orally or visually directly to the Government, the exchange of such information must be memorialized in tangible, recorded form and marked with a suitable notice or legend, and furnished to the Government within ten (10) calendar days after such oral or visual disclosure, or the Government shall have no duty to limit or restrict, and shall not incur any liability for any disclosure and use of such information. Upon Government request, additional detailed information about the exchange will be provided subject to restrictions on use and disclosure.

(4) Disclaimer of Liability: Notwithstanding the above, the Government shall not be restricted in, nor incur any liability for, the disclosure and use of:

(a) Data not identified with a suitable notice or legend as set forth in this Article; nor

(b) Information contained in any Data for which disclosure and use is restricted under Article VIII entitled "Confidential Information" above, if such information is or becomes generally known without breach of the above, is properly known to the Government or is generated by the Government independent of carrying out responsibilities under this Agreement, is rightfully received from a third party without restriction, or is included in Data which the MCDC or any MCDC member entity of PAH has furnished, or is required to furnish to the Government without restriction on disclosure and use.

(5) Marking of Data: Any Data delivered under this Agreement shall be marked with a suitable notice or legend.

H. Notwithstanding the Paragraphs in this Article, differing rights in Data may be negotiated among the Parties to each individual project on a case-by-case basis.

I. Lower Tier Agreements

The MCDC shall include this Article, suitably modified to identify the parties, in all Project Agreements, subcontracts or lower tier agreements, regardless of tier, or experimental, developmental, or research work.

J. Survival Rights

Provisions of this Article shall survive termination of this Agreement under Article II.

Notwithstanding the terms of this in this Article, differing rights in data may be negotiated among the Parties to each individual Technology Project Agreement on a case-by-case basis.

ARTICLE XII: EXPORT CONTROL

Export Control

(1) Information subject to Export Control Laws/International Traffic in Arms Regulation (ITAR):

Public Law 90-629, « Arms Export Control Act, » as amended (22 U.S.C. 2751 et. seq.) requires that all unclassified technical data with military application may not be exported lawfully without an approval, authorization, or license under EO 12470 or the Arms Export Control Act and that such data require an approval, authorization, or license under EO 12470 or the Arms Export Control Act. For purposes of making this determination, the Military Critical Technologies List (MCTL) shall be used as general guidance. All documents determined to contain export controlled technical data will be marked with the following notice:

<u>WARNING-</u> this document contains technical data whose export is restricted by the Arms Export Control Act (Title 22, U.S.C., and Sec 2751, et seq.) or the Export Administration Act of 1979, as amended, Title 50, U.S.C., App. 2401 et seq. Violations of these export laws are subject to severe criminal penalties. Disseminate in accordance with provision of DOD Directive 5230.25.

(2) Flowdown.

The MCDC shall include this Article, suitably modified, to identify all Parties, in all Project Agreements or lower tier agreements. This Article shall, in turn, be included in all sub-tier subcontracts or other forms of lower tier agreements, regardless of tier.

ARTICLE XIII: TITLE AND DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

A. Definitions

In this Article, "property" means any tangible personal property other than property actually consumed during the execution of work under this Agreement.

B. Title to Property

No significant items of property are expected to be acquired under this Agreement by the MCDC. Title to any item of property valued \$10,000.00 or less that is acquired by the MCDC, CMF or PAH pursuant to a Project Agreement with the MCDC, in performance of the project issued to the MCDC under this OTA shall vest in the PAH upon acquisition with no further obligation of the Parties unless otherwise determined by the AO. Should any item of property with an acquisition value greater than \$10,000.00 be required, the PAH through the CMF shall obtain prior written approval of the AO. Title to this property shall also vest in the MCDC member entity or PAH upon acquisition. That PAH shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair, protection, and preservation of all such property at its own expense. Property acquired pursuant to this clause shall not be considered as in exchange for services in performance of the project, but shall be considered a Government contribution to the project.

C. Government Furnished Property

The Government may provide CMF, or the PAH Government Furnished Property (GFP) to facilitate the performance of individual projects under this Other Transaction Agreement. Such GFP will be specifically identified to a particular project via a modification to the basic OTA updating Attachment 3, the MCS Government Property List, and subsequently incorporated into a resulting Project Agreement. The GFP shall be utilized only for the performance of that individual project unless a specific exception is made in writing by the Agreements Officer.

The MCDC CMF, the MCDC Member Organization, or the PAH shall assume the risk of and be responsible for any loss or destruction of, or damage to, any Government Furnished Property while in its possession or control, with the exception of reasonable wear and tear or reasonable and proper consumption. All property shall be returned at the end of the Project Agreement in as good as condition as when received with the exception of said reasonable wear and tear or in accordance with the provisions of the Project Agreement regarding its use. The MCDC CMF or the PAH shall obtain explicit written authorization for any transfer or disposition of Government Furnished Property.

ARTICLE XIV: CIVIL RIGHTS ACT

This Agreement is subject to the compliance requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000-d) relating to nondiscrimination in Federally assisted programs. The MCDC, upon executing the agreement, will assure each MCDC Member has signed an Assurance of Compliance with the nondiscriminatory provisions of the Act. The Parties recognize that since the MCDC has no employees, that compliance is the responsibility of each MCDC Member.

ARTICLE XV: NO SMALL BUSINESS AFFILIATION

The Parties hereby acknowledge that the MCDC has been formed at the request of the Government in order to develop and execute planned prototype hardware, software, and system technologies involving industry, academia and the Government. Every Member in this consortium is independent of the other businesses and entities in the consortium, and there is no affiliation between the MCDC Members within the definition of 13 C.F.R. § 121.103 of the federal small business regulations and no such affiliation is intended either by the formation or implementation of the consortium. The small business' membership in the MCDC will merely provide potential access to certain Project Agreements from the MCDC —in the event the small business' proposal which is submitted in response to a Government call for proposals is evaluated and selected by the Government for funding through a competitive process, the MCDC CMF shall at that point enter into an Project Agreement with the small business for that Government-selected work. The Government shall designate and provide an AOR for each specific project funded to oversee the technical work performed by the MCDC Members whose proposals were selected by the Government for that project.

ARTICLE XVI: ANTITRUST

In the MCDC membership agreement, members agree to comply with all applicable U.S. laws, including U.S. antitrust laws. The MCDC is recognized under the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993 and the MCDC will be similarly filing under the Act.

ARTICLE XVII: SECURITY & OPSEC

All PAH shall comply with DFARS 252.204-7012 (Oct 2016): Safeguarding Covered Defense Information and Cyber Incident Reporting when applicable.

Covered Defense Information (CDI) will be identified at the Project Agreement level. The MCDC Member shall comply with DFARS 252.204-7012 (Oct 2016): Safeguarding Covered Defense Information and Cyber Incident Reporting, which includes implementing on its covered contractor information systems the security requirements

specified by DFARS 252.204-7012. Nothing in this paragraph shall be interpreted to foreclose the MCDC Member's right to seek alternate means of complying with the security requirements in National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Special Publication (SP) 800-171 (as contemplated in DFARS 252.204-7008 (Compliance with Safeguarding Covered Defense Information Controls) (Oct 2016) and DFARS 252.204-7012 (Safeguarding Covered Defense Information and Cyber Incident Reporting (Oct 2016)).

Work performed by a PAH under a Project Agreement may involve access to Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI). All Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI) developed under this Agreement will be managed in accordance with DoD Manual 5200.01, Volume 4 dated February 24, 2012. Contractor personnel shall comply with applicable Technology Protection Plans (TPP), Interim Program Protection Plans (IPPP) and/or Program Protection Plans (PPP). If a project involves a Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI) effort, the below listed Department of Defense Directives, Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) and the Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement (DFARS), and ARDEC clauses will be incorporated into the Project Agreements by reference with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text.

- Each project Scope of Work will be provided by the Agreements Officer Representative (AOR) to the Joint Project Manager- Medical Countermeasure Systems Office for dissemination to the appropriate Fort Detrick COMSEC officer prior to award for review.
- (2) Each project Scope of Work will be subject to Ft. Detrick policy and procedure according to DoD 5220.22-M, (National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual, NISPOM), as deemed applicable and appropriate during the security review process and prior to award. Additional COMSEC requirements may be required at other locations/facilities (based on service/command requirements).
- (3) Specific applicable policies, instructions, and regulations will be identified in each project. Throughout the life of the Agreement, if any policy, instruction, or regulation is replaced or superseded, the replacement or superseding version shall apply. The following is a snapshot of key regulatory documents, policies, regulations, etc that may be applicable at time of project award. See Attachment 2 for full text of below applicable clauses.
 - a) DoDM 5200.01 DoD Information Security Program, 24 Feb 12
 - b) DoD 5200.2-R Personnel Security Regulation, Jan 87
 - c) DoDD 5220.22 National Industrial Security Program, 28 Feb 06
 - d) DoDI 5200.01, Information Security Program and Protection of Sensitive Compartmented Information, 24 Feb 2012
 - e) DoD 5400.7-R, DOD Freedom of Information Act, Sept 98
 - f) DoDD 2000.12, Antiterrorism Program, 18 Aug 03
 - g) FAR Clause 4.402, Safeguarding Classified Information Within Industry
 - h) FAR Clause 52.204-2, Security Requirements, Aug 1996
- (4) For all Project Agreements, the following statement shall be flowed to the MCDC member entities unless otherwise stated within the Project Agreements.
 - a) Classification guidance for requirement "The security level for this agreement is UNCLASSIFIED."
- (5) Anti-Terrorism Level I Training. This provision is for PAH employees with an area of performance within an Army controlled installation, facility or area. All PAH employees requiring access to Army installations, facilities and controlled access areas shall complete AT Level I awareness training within sixty (60)-calendar- days after project start date or effective date of incorporation of this requirement into the project, whichever is applicable. PAH(s) shall submit certificates of completion for each affected employee and PAH employee, to the AOR or to the Agreements Officer, if an AOR is not assigned, within thirty (30)-calendar-days after completion of training by all employees or personnel. AT level I awareness training is available at the following website: <u>https://atlevel1.dtic mil/at</u>.
- (6) Access and General Protection/Security Policy and Procedures. This standard language text is for PAH employees with an area of performance within an Army controlled installation, facility or area. PAH employees shall comply with applicable installation, facility and area commander installation/facility access and local security policies and procedures (provided by government representative). The PAH also

shall provide all information required for background checks to meet installation access requirements to be accomplished by installation Provost Marshal Office, Director of Emergency Services or Security Office. The PAH workforce must comply with all personal identity verification requirements as directed by DOD, HQDA and/or local policy. In addition to the changes otherwise authorized by the changes clause of this agreement, should the Force Protection Condition (FPCON) at any individual facility or installation change, the Government may require changes in PAH security matters or processes.

- (7) Anti-Terrorism Awareness Training for PAH Personnel Traveling Overseas. This standard language text requires U.S.-based PAH employees to make available and to receive Government provided area of responsibility (AOR) specific AT awareness training as directed by AR 525-13. Specific AOR training content is directed by the combatant commander with the unit Anti-terrorism Officer (ATO) being the local point of contact.
- (8) iWATCH Training. This standard language is for PAH employees with an area of performance within an Army- controlled installation, facility or area. PAH(s) shall brief all employees on the local iWATCH program (training standards provided by the requiring activity ATO). This local developed training will be used to inform employees of the types of behavior to watch for and instruct employees to report suspicious activity to the AOR. This training shall be completed within sixty (60)-calendar-days of a Project Agreement award and within sixty (60)-calendar-days of new employees' commencing performance with the results reported to the AOR NLT thirty (30)-calendar-days after Project Agreement award.
- (9) Impact on PAH performance during increased FPCON during periods of increased threat. During FPCONs Charlie and Delta, services may be discontinued / postponed due to higher threat. Services will resume when FPCON level is reduced to Bravo or lower.
- (10) Random Antiterrorism Measures Program (RAMP) participation. PAH personnel working on an installation are subject to participation in Installation RAMP security program (e.g. vehicle searches, wearing of ID badges, etc.).
- (11) PAH Employees Who Require Access to Government Information Systems. All PAH employees with access to a government information system must be registered in the ATCTS (Army Training Certification Tracking System) at commencement of services, and must successfully complete the DOD Information Assurance Awareness prior to access to the IS and then annually thereafter.
- (12) For projects that Require an OPSEC Standing Operating Procedure/Plan. The PAH shall develop an OPSEC Standing Operating Procedure (SOP)/Plan within ninety (90)-calendar-days of project award to be reviewed and approved by the responsible Government OPSEC officer, per AR 530-1, Operations Security. This plan will be submitted by MCDC on behalf of the PAH(s) to the AO for coordination of approvals. This SOP/Plan will include the Government's critical information, why it needs to be protected, where it is located, who is responsible for it and how to protect it. In addition, MCDC shall identify an individual who will be an OPSEC Coordinator. MCDC will ensure this individual becomes OPSEC Level II certified per AR 530-1.
- (13) For projects that Require OPSEC Training. Per AR 530-1, Operations Security, new PAH employees assigned by the PAH(s) to perform under a MCDC Project Agreement must complete Level I OPSEC awareness training within thirty (30)-calendar-days of their reporting for duty. All PAH employees performing under an OPSEC-designated project must complete annual Level I OPSEC awareness training. Level I OPSEC awareness training is available at the following website: <u>http://cdsetrain.dtic.mil/opsec/</u>.
- (14) For Information assurance (IA)/information technology (IT) training. All PAH employees must complete the DoD IA awareness training before issuance of network access and annually thereafter. All PAH(s) working IA/IT functions must comply with DoD and Army training requirements in DoDD 8570.01, DoD 8570.01-M and AR 25-2 within six (6) months of employment.

- (15) For information assurance (IA)/information technology (IT) certification. Per DoD 8570.01-M, DFARS 252.239-7001 and AR 25-2, the PAH employees supporting IA/IT functions shall be appropriately certified upon Project Agreement award. The baseline certification as stipulated in DoD 8570.01-M must be completed upon Project Agreement award.
- (16) For PAH personnel authorized to accompany the Force. DFARS Clause 252.225-7040, Contractor Personnel Authorized to Accompany U.S. Armed Forces Deployed Outside the United States. The clause shall be used in projects that authorize PAH personnel to accompany U.S. Armed Forces deployed outside the U.S. in contingency operations; humanitarian or peacekeeping operations; or other military operations or exercises, when designated by the combatant commander. The clause discusses the following AT/OPSEC related topics: required compliance with laws and regulations, pre-deployment requirements, required training (per combatant command guidance) and personnel data required.
- (17) For projects requiring Performance or Delivery in a Foreign Country, DFARS Clause 252.225-7043, Antiterrorism/Force Protection for Defense Contractors Outside the U.S. The clause shall be used in projects that require performance or delivery in a foreign country. This clause applies to both contingencies and non-contingency support. The key AT requirement is for non-local national PAH personnel to comply with theater clearance requirements and allows the combatant commander to exercise oversight to ensure the PAH's compliance with combatant commander and subordinate task force commander policies and directives.
- (18) For projects requiring the PAH to obtain U.S. Government Common Access Cards, installation badges, and/or access passes, the PAH shall return all issued U.S. Government Common Access Cards, installation badges, and/or access passes to the AOR when the project is completed or when the PAH employee no longer requires access to the installation or facility.
- (19) For projects that require access to Potential Critical Program Information (PCPI) / Critical Program Information (CPI):
 - a) The PAH shall comply with the associated Interim Program Protection Plan (IPPP) / Program Protection Plan (PPP) / or Technology Protection Plan (TPP). The PAH shall comply with DOD, DA and AMC technology protection requirements in DODI 5200.39, AR 70-1, DA PAM 70-3 and AMC-R-380-13.
- (20) Work by the Consortium Management Firm (CMF) and Project Agreement Holder/Consortium Member (PAH) under Project Agreements may involve access to Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI) as well as information classified as "Confidential", "Secret", or "Top Secret". The CMF and the PAH and their employees who work on such Project Agreements shall comply with (1) the Security Agreement (DD Form 441), including the National Industrial Security Program Operation Manual (DOD 5220.22M), (2) any revisions to that manual that may be issued, and (3) the Agreement security classification specification (DD form 254) if included, and all security requirements including but not limited to OPSEC plans and those security requirements specific to the individual projects. During the course of this Agreement the Parties may determine that information developed by the PAH and/or the Government pursuant to this Agreement shall be treated as classified. Such information shall be classified in accordance with DOD 5220.22M.
 - a) Each project Scope of Work will be provided by the AOR to the AOR's local Security Office prior to award for review. For classified efforts that Security Office will provide the overall Security Classification Specification (DD form 254). The PAH will be responsible for providing a copy of any Subcontract Security Classification Specification (DD Form 254) to lower tier awards.
 - b) If an Project Agreement involves a classified effort or a Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI) effort, the following Department of Defense Directives, Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) and the Defense Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement (DFARS) clauses by reference, and local clauses will be incorporated with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text shall be incorporated into this agreement.

- c) Specific applicable policies, instructions, and regulations will be identified in each Project Agreement. Throughout the life of the agreement, if any policy, instruction, or regulation is replaced or superseded, the replacement or superseding version shall apply.
- d) Agreement Structure
 - Research and Development under these Project Agreements will be in accordance with the Other Transaction Agreement (OTA) between the United States Army Contracting Command – New Jersey (ACC-NJ) and the MCDC in care of its Consortium Management Firm (CMF), Advanced Technology International (ATI).
 - ii) Within the Project Agreements, sharing of classified information will be on a need to know basis as directed in required Project Agreements.
 - iii) Upon Project Agreement completion or termination, the PAH must:
 - (1) Return ALL classified received or generated under the Project Agreement;
 - (2) Destroy all of the classified; or,
 - (3) Request retention for a specified period of time

Flowdown for OPSEC/Security Requirements:

MCDC shall include the aspects of this Article as they pertain to each project requirement. Each project will include specific OPSEC / Security requirements within each SOW and RPP. The requirements delineated within each project, in turn, shall be included in all sub-tier subcontracts or other forms of lower-tier agreements, regardless of tier.

ARTICLE XVIII: SAFETY

The PAH shall adhere to all local, state, and federal rules and regulations required in maintaining a safe and nonhazardous occupational environment throughout the duration of the project. At a minimum, the PAH shall provide the following reports and materials on an as needed basis:

Accident/Incident Report: The PAH shall report immediately any major accident/incident (including fire) resulting in any one or more of the following: causing one or more fatalities or one or more disabling injuries; damage of Government property exceeding \$10,000; affecting program planning or production schedules; degrading the safety of equipment under a project, such as personnel injury or property damage may be involved; identifying a potential hazard requiring corrective action. The PAH shall prepare the report (DI-SAFT-81563) for each incident.

Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS): The PAH shall prepare and maintain MSDS for all materials used and generated under this agreement.

Environmental Requirements include the following:

Pollution Prevention: Consideration should be given to alternative materials and processes in order to eliminate, reduce, or minimize hazardous waste being generated. This is to be accomplished while minimizing item cost and risk to item performance.

Environmental Compliance: All activities must be in compliance with Federal, State, and local environmental laws and regulations, Executive orders, treaties, and agreements. The PAH shall evaluate the environmental consequences and identify the specific types and amounts of hazardous waste being generated during the conduct of efforts undertaken under this Agreement.

Hazardous Waste Report: The PAH shall evaluate the environmental consequences and identify the specific types and amounts of hazardous waste being generated during this Agreement. The PAH shall submit a Hazardous Waste Report IAW DI-MGMT-80899.

Disposal Instructions for Residual/Scrap Materials: The PAH shall dispose of all residual and scrap materials generated from this Agreement, including high explosives. The PAH shall specify the anticipated quantities, methods, and disposal costs.

ARTICLE XIX: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Representations and Warranties of All Parties

Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other Parties that (1) it is free to enter into this Agreement; (2) in so doing, it will not violate any other agreement to which it is a party; and (3) it has taken all action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

B. Limitations

Except as expressly provided herein, no party to this Agreement makes any warranty, express or implied, either in fact or by operation of law, by statute or otherwise, relating to (1) any research conducted under this agreement, or (2) any invention conceived and/or reduced to practice under this agreement, or (3) any other intellectual property developed under this Agreement, and each party to this Agreement specifically disclaims any implied warranty of merchantability or warranty of fitness for a particular purpose.

ARTICLE XX: LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES

A. Waiver of Liability

With regard to the activities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, no Party shall make any claim against the others, employees of the others, the others' related entities (e.g., contractors, subcontractors, etc.), or employees of the others' related entities for any injury to or death of its own employees or employees of its related entities, or for damage to or loss of its own property or that of its related entities, whether such injury, death, damage or loss arises through negligence or otherwise, except in the case of willful misconduct.

B. Damages

The Parties shall not be liable to each other for consequential, punitive, special and incidental damages or other indirect damages, whether arising in contract (including warranty), tort (whether or not arising from the negligence of a Party) or otherwise, except to the extent such damages are caused by a Party's willful misconduct; Notwithstanding the foregoing, claims for contribution toward third-party injury, damage, or loss are not limited, waived, released, or disclaimed.

C. Extension of Waiver of Liability

The MCDC agrees to extend the waiver of liability as set forth above MCDC PAHs at any tier under an Project Agreement by requiring them, by contract or otherwise, to agree to waive all claims against the Parties to this Agreement.

D. Applicability

Notwithstanding the other provisions of this article, this Waiver of Liability shall not be applicable to:

- (1) Claims between the MCDC and the Government regarding a material breach, noncompliance, or nonpayment of funds;
- (2) Claims for damage caused by willful misconduct; and
- (3) Intellectual property claims.

E. Limitation of Liability

In no case shall the Government, or the MCDC member entity's financial liability exceed the amount obligated by the Government or committed as a Cash Contribution or In-kind Contribution by a MCDC member entity under a

Project Agreement. Nothing in this Article shall be construed to create the basis of a claim or suit where none would otherwise exist.

ARTICLE XXI: GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Fees

It is understood that the MCDC is responsible for funding selected projects under this Agreement, and as such the MCDC will not be constrained from the payment of an appropriate fee or profit to the MCDC PAH for the effort being conducted when cost share is not being contributed by the MCDC member entity. The fees shall be specific to the individual Project Agreements and negotiated on project by project basis.

B. Waiver

No waiver of any rights shall be effective unless assented to in writing by the Party to be charged, and the waiver of any breach or default shall not constitute a waiver of any other right hereunder or any subsequent breach or default.

C. Section Headings

The headings and subheadings of the sections of this Agreement are intended for convenience of reference only and are not intended to be a part of, or to affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

D. Severability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement becomes or is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, unenforceable or void, this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect without said provision; Provided that no such severability shall be effective if the result of such action materially changes the economic benefit of this Agreement to the Parties.

E. Force Majeure

No failure or omission by MCDC, the CMF, or the MCDC PAH in the performance of any obligation of this Agreement shall be deemed a breach of this Agreement or create any liability if the same shall arise from any cause or causes beyond the control of the Parties, including but not limited to, the following: acts of God; Acts or omissions of any Government; Any rules, regulations or orders issued by any Governmental authority or by any officer, department, and agency or instrumentality thereof; fire; storm; flood; earthquake; accident; war; rebellion; insurrection; riot; and invasion and provided that such failure or omission resulting from one of the above causes is cured as soon as is practicable after the occurrence of one or more of the above mentioned causes.

F. Regulatory Affairs

Development and production of medical products and processes fall under the purview of the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and research on these products involving animal or human studies is regulated by other laws, directives, and regulations. Project Awards under this Agreement that involve work in support of or related to FDA regulatory approval will address contingencies for Government access to regulatory rights in the event of product development abandonment or failure. Efforts conducted under this OTA shall be done ethically and in accordance with all applicable laws, directives, and regulations.

The Government shall ensure performance includes regulatory expertise and guidance for candidate medical countermeasure development efforts:

(1) This includes allowing the government to discuss/negotiate in partnership with the consortium how to assume appropriate risk in regulatory strategies. The government will review, negotiate, and come to consensus with the PAH on product-specific risk-based decisions.

(2) PAHs will use all regulatory programs to accelerate the pace of candidate medical countermeasure development, including fast-track status, and as appropriate meeting requirements for priority review vouchers, applying for breakthrough therapy and accelerated approval as appropriate (see FDA Guidance for Industry: Expedited Programs for Serious Conditions – Drugs and Biologics).

(3) PAH will provide FDA submissions to the government such as all documentation requested by FDA and all proposals to FDA.

(4) PAH will allow the government to monitor all FDA communications by listening to teleconferences and attending meetings.

(5) PAH will allow the government to attend regulatory site visits and audits, and actively participate in all third-party audits.

(6) PAH will comply with Quality Assurance according to negotiated standards with the government on reports, material for Interim Fielding Capability (such as Emergency Use Authorization or Expanded Access Protocols), product for trials, prototypes, etc.

(7) PAH will provide strategies to address contingencies that could arise from regulatory directives, and regulatory failures.

G. Radioactive Materials

PAH shall ensure compliance with the provisions of Title 10 CFR 21. This regulation establishes procedures and requirements for implementation of Section 206 of the energy Reorganization Act of 1974.

H. Recombinant DNA

PAH shall ensure that all work involving the use of recombinant DNA will be in compliance with guidance provided at the following website: <u>http://www4.od.nih.gov/oba</u> (National Institutes of Health [NIH] Guidelines for Research Involving Recombinant DNA Molecules).

J. Required Compliance for Use of Laboratory Animals

Notwithstanding any other provisions contained in this award or incorporated by reference herein, the PAH is expressly forbidden to use or subcontract for the use of laboratory animals in any manner whatsoever without the express written approval of the US Army Medical Research and Materiel Command, Animal Care and Use Office. The PAH shall receive written approval to begin research under the applicable protocol proposed for a Project Agreement from the US Army Medical Research and Materiel Command, Animal Care and Use Office under separate letter to the PAH and Principal Investigator. A copy of this approval will be provided to the ACC-NJ for the official file. Non-compliance with any provision of this clause may result in the termination of award. Information is provided at the following website https://mrmc.amedd.army.mil/rodorpaurd.asp. The PAH will conduct advanced development/pivotal studies including human safety studies, animal efficacy studies or clinical studies required for approval using validated endpoints, and other studies as deemed necessary by the FDA for licensure of the candidate product in adherence to current Good Laboratory Practice regulations, current Good Clinical Practice regulations, and all other applicable FDA regulations in the conduct of non-clinical and clinical studies as defined by FDA guidance (21 CFR Parts 210-211).

K. Required Compliance for Use of Human Subjects

Research under this award involving the use of human subjects may not begin until the U.S. Army Medical Research and Materiel Command's Office of Research Protections, Human Research Protections Office (HRPO) approves the protocol in accordance with 45 CFR Part 46. Written approval to begin research or subcontract for the use of human subjects under the applicable protocol proposed for this award will be issued from the US Army Medical Research and Materiel Command, HRPO, under separate letter to the funded institution and the Principal Investigator. A copy of this approval will be provided to ACC-NJ for the official file. Non-compliance with any provision of this clause may result in withholding of funds and or the termination of the award. Information is provided at the following website: https://mrmc.amedd.army.mil/rodorphrpo.asp.

L. Required Compliance for use of Human Anatomical Substances

Research at funded institutions using human anatomical substances may not begin until the U.S. Army Medical Research and Materiel Command's Office of Research Protections, Human Research Protections Office (HRPO) approves the protocol. Written approval to begin research or subcontract for the use of human anatomical substances under the applicable protocol proposed for this award will be issued from the US Army Medical Research and Materiel Command, HRPO, under separate letter to the funded institution and the Principal Investigator. A copy of this approval will be provided to ACC-NJ for the official file. Non-compliance with any provision of this clause may result in withholding of funds and or the termination of the award. Information is provided at the following web site: https://mrmc.amedd.army.mil/rodorphrpo.asp

M. Compliance with current Good Manufacturing Processes (cGMP)

Manufacturing Standards as appropriate for the level of prototype Material used for clinical trials, pivotal nonclinical studies, consistency lots, and other uses as defined in regulatory plans should be compliant with current Good Manufacturing Processes (cGMP) as defined by FDA guidance (21 CFR Parts 210-211). If at any time during the life of the award, the MCDC member fails to comply with cGMP in the manufacturing, processing and packaging of this product and such failure results in a material adverse effect on the safety, purity or potency of the product (a material failure) as identified by the FDA, the MCDC member shall have thirty (30) calendar days from the time such material failure is identified to cure such material failure.

N. Registration with Select Agent Program

Where required, consortium members performing studies and tasks using select biological agent or toxins should be registered with the program with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) or the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Services (APHIS), U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), as applicable, before performing work, in accordance with 42 CFR 73. No Government funds can be used for work involving Select Agents, as defined in 42 CFR 73, if the final registration certificate is denied. Listings of select agents and toxins, biologic agents and toxins, and overlap agents or toxins as well as information about the registration process, can be obtained on the Select Agent Program Web site at http://www.cdc.gov/od/sap/.

O. Duty-Free Entry

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause -

- (1) "Component," means any item supplied to the Government as part of an end product or of another component.
- (2) "Customs territory of the United States" means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico.
- (3) "Eligible product" means -
 - (i) "Designated country end product" as defined in the Trade Agreements clause;
 - (ii) "Free Trade Agreement country end product" other than a "Bahrainian end product" or a "Moroccan end product" as defined in the Buy American Act – Free Trade Agreements – Balance of Payments Program; or
 - (iii) "Canadian end product" as defined in Alternate I of the Buy American Act Free Trade Agreements Balance of Payments Program.
- (4) "Qualifying country" and "qualifying country end product" have the meanings given in the Trade Agreements clause, the Buy American Act and Balance of Payments Program clause, or the Buy American Act—Free Trade Agreements—Balance of Payments Program.
- (b) Except as provided in paragraph (i) of this clause, or unless supplies were imported into the customs territory of the United States before the date of a Project Agreement or the applicable subcontract, the price of this Agreement shall not include any amount for duty on-
 - (1) End items that are eligible products or qualifying country end products;

(2) Components (including, without limitation, raw materials and intermediate assemblies) produced or made in qualifying countries, that are to be incorporated in U.S – made end products to be delivered under an Project Agreement; or

(3) Other supplies for which the PAH estimates that duty will exceed \$200 per shipment into the customs territory of the Unites States

- (c) The PAH shall -
 - (1) Claim duty-free entry only for supplies that the PAH intends to deliver to the Government under an Project Agreement, either as end items or components of end items; and
 - (2) Pay duty on supplies, or any portion thereof, that are diverted to nongovernmental use, other than –

 (i) Scrap or salvage; or

(ii) Competitive sale made, directed, or authorized by the Agreements Officer.

- (d) Except as the PAH may otherwise agree, the Government will execute duty-free entry certificates and will afford such assistance as appropriate to obtain the duty-free entry of supplies
 - (1) For which no duty is included in the Project Agreement price in accordance with paragraph (b) of this clause; and
 - (2) For which shipping documents bear the notation specified in paragraph (e) of this clause.

- (e) For foreign supplies for which the Government will issue duty-free entry certificates in accordance with this clause, shipping documents submitted to Customs shall
 - (1) Consign the shipments to the appropriate -
 - (i) Military department in care of the PAH, including the PAH's delivery address; or
 - (ii) Military installation; and
 - (2) Include the following information:
 - (i) Prime Agreement number and, if applicable, delivery order number.
 - (ii) Number of the subcontract for foreign supplies, if applicable.
 - (iii)Identification of the carrier.
 - (iv)(A) For direct shipments to a U.S. military installation, the notation: "UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE Duty-Free Entry to be claimed pursuant to Section XXII, Chapter 98, Subchapter VIII, Item 9808.00.30 of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States. Upon arrival of shipment at the appropriate port of entry, District Director of Customs, please release shipment under 19 CFR Part 142 and notify Commander, Defense Contract management Agency (DCMA) New York, ATTN: Customs Team, DCMAE-GNTF, 207 New York Avenue, Staten Island, New York, 10305-5013, for execution of Customs Form 7501, 7501A, or 7506 and any required dutyfree entry certificates."

(B) If the shipment will be consigned to other than a military installation, e.g., a domestic contractor's plant, the shipping document notation shall be altered to include the name and address of the contractor, agent, or broker who will notify Commander, DCMA New York, for execution of the duty-free certificate. (If the shipment will be consigned to a contractor's plant and no duty-free entry certificate is required due to a trade agreement, the PAH shall claim duty-free entry under the applicable trade agreement and shall comply with the U.S. Customs Service requirements. No notification to Commander, DCMA New York, is required.)

- (v) Gross weight in pounds (if freight is based on space tonnage, state cubic feet in addition to gross shipping weight.)
- (vi) Estimated value in U.S. dollars.
- (vii)Activity address number of the contract administration office administering the prime contract, e.g., for DCMA Dayton, S3605A.

(f) Preparation of customs forms.

- (1)(i) Except for shipments consigned to a military installation, the PAH shall -
 - (A) Prepare any customs forms required for the entry of foreign supplies into the customs territory of the United States in connection with this Agreement; and
 - (B) Submit the completed customs forms to the District Director of Customs, with a copy to DCMA NY for execution of any required duty-free entry certificates.
 - (ii) Shipments consigned directly to a military installation will be released in accordance with sections 10.101 and 10.102 of the U.S. Customs regulations.
- (2) For shipments containing both supplies that are to be accorded duty-free entry and supplies that are not, the PAH shall identify on the customs forms those items that are eligible for duty-free entry.

(g) The PAH shall -

- (1) Prepare (if the PAH is a foreign supplier), or shall instruct the foreign supplier to prepare, a sufficient number of copies of the bill of lading (or other shipping document) so that at least two of the copies accompanying the shipment will be available for use by the District Director of Customs at the port of entry;
- (2) Consign the shipment as specified in paragraph (e) of this clause; and
- (3) Mark on the exterior of all packages -
 - (i) "UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT, DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE"; and
 - (ii) The activity address number of the contract administration office administering the prime Agreement.
- (h) The PAH through the MCDC CMF shall notify the ACO in writing of any purchase of eligible products of qualifying country supplies to be accorded duty-free entry, that are to be imported into the customs territory of the United States for delivery to the Government or for incorporation in end items to be delivered to the Government. The PAH through the MCDC CMF shall furnish the notice to the ACO immediately upon award to the supplier and shall include in the notice –

- (1) The PAH's name, address, and Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code;
- (2) Prime Agreement number and Project Agreement number;
- (3) Total dollar value of the prime Agreement or Project Agreement number;
- (4) Date of the last scheduled delivery under the prime Agreement or Project Agreement number;
- (5) Foreign supplier's name and address;
- (6) Number of the subcontract for foreign supplies;
- (7) Total dollar value of the subcontract for foreign supplies;
- (8) Date of the last scheduled delivery under the subcontract for foreign supplies;
- (9) List of items purchased;
- (10) An agreement that the PAH will pay duty on supplies, or any portion thereof, that are diverted to nongovernmental use other than -
 - (i) Scrap of salvage; or
 - (ii) Competitive sale made, directed, or authorized by the Agreements Officer;
- (11) Country or origin; and
- (12) Scheduled delivery date(s).
- (i) This clause does not apply to purchases of eligible products or qualifying country supplies in connection with this Agreement if
 - (1) The supplies are identical in nature to supplies purchased by the PAH or any subcontractor in connection with its commercial business; and
 - (2) It is not economical or feasible to account for such supplies so as to ensure that the amount of the supplies for which duty-free entry is claimed does not exceed the amount purchased in connection with this Agreement.
- (j) The PAH shall -
 - (1) Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (j), in all subcontracts for -
 - (i) Qualifying country components; or
 - (ii) Nonqualifying country components for which the PAH estimates that duty will exceed \$200 per unit;
 - (2) Require subcontractors to include the number of this Agreement on all shipping documents submitted to Customs for supplies for which duty-free entry is claimed pursuant to this clause; and
 - (3) Include in applicable subcontracts
 - (i) The name and address of the ACO for this Agreement;
 - (ii) The name, address, and activity address number of the contract administration office specified in this Agreement; and
 - (iii) The information required by paragraphs (h)(1), (2), and (3) of this clause.
- P. Follow-On Production

10 U.S.C. § 2371b, Section 815 authorizes the use of a follow-on production contract (FAR) or transaction (OTA). In order to be eligible for follow-on production, the following criteria is required: (1) the follow-on shall be awarded to the same participants named in the Project Agreement; (2) competitive procedures were used to award the Project Agreement in question; and (3) the Project Agreement was successfully completed. This Agreement was the result of competitive procedures, and competitive procedures are used to award individual projects under this Agreement. The Agreements Officer shall be responsible for documenting whether or not a Project Agreement was successfully completed. Follow-on production efforts shall be strictly limited to the scope of the successfully completed prototype. This Agreement will not be used to award follow-on production efforts; Government customers will be responsible for working with their contracting personnel.

All Project Agreements shall include the following statement:

"In accordance with 10 U.S.C. § 2371b(f), and upon a determination that this competitively awarded prototype project has been successfully completed, this prototype project may result in the award of a follow-on production contract or transaction without the use of competitive procedures."

ARTICLE XXII: ASSIGNMENT OF AGENCY

- A. Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations of any party hereunder shall be assigned or otherwise transferred by either party without the prior written consent of the other party except that it is agreed that MCDC may assign this Agreement to the successors or assignees of a substantial portion of MCDC's business interests to which this Agreement directly pertains without prior written consent.
- B. The parties recognize that ATI has been appointed as consortium manager of MCDC to execute the OTA and execute and administer projects and Project Agreements under this OTA. ATI's CAGE Code, DUNS number and CCR registration are being used for issuance and execution of this OTA. Accordingly, the parties agree that in the event the MCDC votes to change its consortium manager, the OTA can be modified to provide for such change in agency, CAGE Code, DUNS number, and CCR registration, with the approval of the Government, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

ARTICLE XXIII: ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

In the event of any inconsistency between the general terms of this Agreement, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the following order: (1) the Agreement; (2) Attachments to the Agreement; (3) the Project Agreement documentation (including but not limited to the TDL and the MCDC member entity proposal selected for funding by the Government). In any event, specifically negotiated Project Agreement terms will govern over general terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXIV: EXECUTION

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the Parties and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, understandings, negotiations and discussions among the Parties, whether oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may be revised only by written consent of the MCDC and the ACC-NJ Agreements Officer designated in this Other Transaction Agreement.

ARTICLE XXV: USE OF UNDEFINITIZED PROJECT ACTIONS

The Government, when it is in its best interest, has the authority to award prototype projects on an undefinitized basis. The exact terms of the Undefinitized Project Action (UPA), to include the Scope, Not to Exceed Amount, and Definitization Schedule, will be provided on a project-by-project basis.

ARTICLE XXVI: SECTION 889 PROHIBITION

Prohibition on the Use of Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment.

This Article is to ensure compliance with Section 889 of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019 (Pub. L. 115-232).

Based on the information provided below, the Government may be unable to enter into a new project agreement, exercise an option under an existing project, bilaterally modify a project agreement to extend the term of a project, execute an additional phase, or incrementally fund an existing project with the Member.

(a) Definitions

Backhaul means intermediate links between the core network, or backbone network, and the small subnetworks at the edge of the network (*e.g.*, connecting cell phones/towers to the core telephone network). Backhaul can be wireless (e.g., microwave) or wired (*e.g.*, fiber optic, coaxial cable, Ethernet).

Covered foreign country means The People's Republic of China.

Covered telecommunications equipment or services means-

(1) Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);

(2) For the purpose of public safety, security of Government facilities, physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);

(3) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment; or

(4) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the Government of a covered foreign country.

Critical technology means-

(1) Defense articles or defense services included on the United States Munitions List set forth in the International Traffic in Arms Regulations under subchapter M of chapter I of title 22, Code of Federal Regulations;

(2) Items included on the Commerce Control List set forth in Supplement No. 1 to part 774 of the Export Administration Regulations under subchapter C of chapter VII of title 15, Code of Federal Regulations, and controlled-

(i) Pursuant to multilateral regimes, including for reasons relating to national security, chemical and biological weapons proliferation, nuclear nonproliferation, or missile technology; or

(ii) For reasons relating to regional stability or surreptitious listening;

(3) Specially designed and prepared nuclear equipment, parts and components, materials, software, and technology covered by part 810 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations (relating to assistance to foreign atomic energy activities);

(4) Nuclear facilities, equipment, and material covered by part 110 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations (relating to export and import of nuclear equipment and material);

(5) Select agents and toxins covered by part 331 of title 7, Code of Federal Regulations, part 121 of title 9 of such Code, or part 73 of title 42 of such Code; or

(6) Emerging and foundational technologies controlled pursuant to section 1758 of the Export Control Reform Act of 2018 (50 U.S.C. 4817).

Interconnection arrangements means arrangements governing the physical connection of two or more networks to allow the use of another's network to hand off traffic where it is ultimately delivered (*e.g.*, connection of a customer of telephone provider A to a customer of telephone company B) or sharing data and other information resources.

Reasonable inquiry means an inquiry designed to uncover any information in the entity's possession about the identity of the producer or provider of covered telecommunications equipment or services used by the entity that excludes the need to include an internal or third-party audit.

Roaming means cellular communications services (*e.g.*, voice, video, data) received from a visited network when unable to connect to the facilities of the home network either because signal coverage is too weak or because traffic is too high.

Substantial or essential component means any component necessary for the proper function or performance of a piece of equipment, system, or service.

(b) Prohibition

(1) The Member is prohibited from providing to the Government any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, unless the Member is providing (i) a service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or interconnection arrangements; or (ii) telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles, or the covered telecommunication equipment or services. A waiver, for a period not exceeding August 13, 2021, may be requested.

(2) The Member acknowledges and accepts that the Government is prohibited from entering into a new project agreement, exercising an option under an existing project, bilaterally modifying the project agreement to extend the term of a project, executing an additional phase, incrementally funding an existing project with the member or with an entity that uses any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, unless an exception at paragraph (b)(1) of this article applies, regardless of whether that use is in performance of work under a Federal contract or agreement.

(c) Certification (to be completed upon Agreements Officer Request)

The Member shall review the list of excluded parties in the System for Award Management (SAM) (<u>https://www.sam.gov</u>) for entities excluded from receiving federal awards for "covered telecommunications equipment or services."

Based on that review:

- (2) If the Member does provide covered telecommunications equipment or services as a part of its offered products or services to the Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract, other transaction agreement, or other contractual instrument as described in paragraph (c)(1), the Member certifies that it will □ will not □ provide covered telecommunications equipment or services to the Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract, subcontract, subcontract, subcontract, other transaction agreement, or other contractual instrument resulting from this solicitation. If the Member will provide covered telecommunications equipment or services to the Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract, subcontract, subcontract, other transaction agreement, or other contractual instrument in the performance of any contract, subcontract, other transaction agreement, or other contractual instrument resulting from this solicitation (c)(2), the Member shall provide the additional disclosure information required at paragraph (d)(1) of this Article.
- (3) The Member certifies, after conducting a reasonable inquiry, for purposes of this certification, that it does □ does not □ use covered telecommunications equipment or services, or use any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services. If the Member does use covered telecommunications equipment or services, or use any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services. If the Member does use covered telecommunications equipment or services and equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as described under this paragraph (c)(3), the Member shall provide the additional disclosure information required at paragraph (d)(2) of this Article.
- (d) Disclosures

(1) Disclosure for the certification in paragraph (c)(2) of this Article. If the Member does provide covered telecommunications equipment or services to the Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract, other transaction agreement, or other contractual instrument in in paragraph (c)(2) of this provision, the Member shall provide the following information:

(i) For covered equipment-

- (A) The entity that produced the covered telecommunications equipment (include entity name, unique entity identifier, Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code, and whether the entity was the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) or a distributor, if known);
- (B) A description of all covered telecommunications equipment offered (include brand; model number, such as OEM number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable); and
- (C) Explanation of the proposed use of covered telecommunications equipment and any factors relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the prohibition in paragraph (b)(1) of this Article.

(ii) For covered services-

- (A) If the service is related to item maintenance: A description of all covered telecommunications services offered (include on the item being maintained: Brand; model number, such as OEM number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable); or
- (B) If not associated with maintenance, the Product Service Code (PSC) of the service being provided; and explanation of the proposed use of covered telecommunications services and any factors relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the prohibition in paragraph (b)(1) of this Article.

(2) If the Member does use covered telecommunications equipment or services, or use any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services in in paragraph (c)(3) of this Article, the Member shall provide the following information:

(i) For covered equipment-

- (A) The entity that produced the covered telecommunications equipment (include entity name, unique entity identifier, CAGE code, and whether the entity was the OEM or a distributor, if known);
- (B) A description of all covered telecommunications equipment offered (include brand; model number, such as OEM number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable); and
- (C) Explanation of the proposed use of covered telecommunications equipment and any factors relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the prohibition in paragraph (b)(2) of this Article.

(ii) For covered services-

- (A) If the service is related to item maintenance: A description of all covered telecommunications services offered (include on the item being maintained: Brand; model number, such as OEM number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable); or
- (B) If not associated with maintenance, the PSC of the service being provided; and explanation of the proposed use of covered telecommunications services and any factors relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the prohibition in paragraph (b)(2) of this Article.
- (e) <u>Reporting Requirement</u>

(1) In the event the Member identifies covered telecommunications equipment or services used as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system, during agreement performance, or the Member is notified of such by a subcontractor at any tier or by any other source, the Member shall report the information in paragraph (e)(2) of this Article to the Agreements Officer and to the Department of Defense website at <u>https://dibnet.dod mil</u>. The Member must notify the CMF that a report has been made.

(2) The Member shall report the following information pursuant to paragraph (e)(1) of this clause:

(i) Within one (1) business day from the date of such identification or notification: the agreement number; the order number(s), if applicable; supplier name; supplier unique entity identifier (if known); supplier CAGE code (if known); brand; model number (original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part number, or wholesaler number); item description; and any readily available information about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended.

(ii) Within ten (10) business days of submitting the information in paragraph (e)(2)(i) of this clause: any further available information about mitigation actions undertaken or recommended. In addition, the Member shall describe the efforts it undertook to prevent use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services, and any additional efforts that will be incorporated to prevent future use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services.

(f) Subcontracts

The Member shall insert the substance of this article, including this paragraph (f) and excluding paragraph (b)(2), in all subcontracts and other contractual instruments, including subcontracts for the acquisition of commercial items.

Section I - Contract Clauses

CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

52.232-18 Availability Of Funds

APR 1984

Section J - List of Documents, Exhibits and Other Attachments

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

	Description	Pages	Date
Attachment 1	OTA Metrics Questionnaire	001	7 April 2016
Attachment 2	Safety & Security Clauses	001	15 July 2016
Attachment 3	Government Furnished Property List	001	7 April 2016
Attachment 4	MCDC Membership List	002	15 July 2016
Attachment 5	Rate Agreement Letter MCS OTA	002	24 August 2018
Attachment 6	DD254 MCDC Base OTA	003	01 December 2016
Attachment 7	MCDC Award Tracker	001	30 July 2020
Attachment 8	MCDC Special Allocation Letter	002	30 June 2020